PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, September 19,2019

Time: 8:00 a.m. - BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA

L. Call to Order:

I1. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: August 22, 2019*
I11. Public Comment:

I[V.  Old Business:

A. Approvals:
1. Lonza — (Parking Garage and Iron Parcel) * (Allard)

V. Finance:
A. Reports:
1. Y 2020 Financial Report for the Period Ending July 31, 2019 *
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending May 31, 2020*

VI.  Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:
A. Reports:

1. Right-of-Entry — NH DES to enter upon the premises located at 360 Corporate

Drive for overflow parking *
2. Right-of-Entry — U.S. Department of State — Active Shooter Training *

VII.  Leases:
A. Reports:
1. Sublease between 231 Corporate Drive, LLC and University of New Hampshire *
2. Sublease between One New Hampshire Avenue, LLC and PrimeLending *
3. Shaines & McEachern Company Portsmouth — Exercise its second five (5) year

option to extend sublease to September 30, 2025 *

VIH. Contracts/Agreements:
A. Reports:
l. aboutGOLF — Purchase of supplies for Golf Simulators *

B. Approvals:
1. aboutGOLF — Three (3) year subscription * (Bohenko)
2. 14 Person Passenger Bus — ADA Compliant * (Lamson)

IX. Signs:
A. Reports:
L. Purchase of Optima Bank by Cambridge Trust Bank *

1



XI.

XIL

XIIT.

XIV.

XV.

XVIL.

*
Kk
k%

+

Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals

A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Operations
2. Airport Operations

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)
c) Noise Line Reports *

B. Approvals:
1. Bill for Legal Services * (Levesque)

Division of Ports and Harbors:
A. Reports:
1. Right-of-Entry — Rye Harbor Marine Facility, Charter Board M/V Utopia *

B. Approvals:
1. Burge Dock — Guide Pile Replacement * (Allard)

2. Initial Proposed Schedule of Fees: Commercial Piers and Associated Facilities *
(Torr)

3. Right-of-Entry Extension - Juliet Marine * (Bohenko)

4. Right-of-Entry Extension - Riverside and Pickering Marine Contractors at Market

Street Terminal for Buoy Project* (Loughlin)
5. Right-of-Entry - Hampton, New England EcoAdventures * (Levesque)
6. Final Proposal Pda 500 Rules * (Torr)

New Business:

Upcoming Meetings:

Port Committee October 03, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m.
Audit Committee October 15, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m.
Board of Directors October 17,2019 @ 8:00 a.m.

Residential Housing Committee October 17, 2019 @ TBD
All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Directors’ Comments
Adjournment

Press Questions

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials

]
PABOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda September 19.docx



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, August 22,2019
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

MINUTES
Presiding: Kevin H. Smith, Chairman
Present: Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; John P.

Bohenko; Neil Levesque and Franklin G. Torr

Telephonically: Margaret F. Lamson from 10:33 a.m. to 11:41 a.m. (during this time all votes
were roll call votes)

Attending: David R. Mullen, Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Executive Director;

Paul E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director and Airport Director; Lynn M. Hinchee,
General Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public.

I. Call to Order:
Chairman Smith called the meeting to order at 10:34 a.m. in the Board conference room
on the Pease International Tradeport at 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: June 20,2019

Director Loughlin moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby accepts the minutes of the June 20, 2019 Board
meeting.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call (7 — 0) vote for; motion carried.

III. Public Comment:

There was no public comment.

IV.  Committee Meetings:
A. Reports:
1. Residential Housing Committee Agenda

Chairman Smith asked General Counsel Lynn Marie Hinchee (Hinchee) if she had
anything further she would like to add regarding this recent meeting; Hinchee indicated nothing
to add. Chairman Smith indicated that the next meeting is scheduled for September 18, 2019
(the actual date of the meeting is September 19, 2019).

Director Allard moved and Director Loughlin seconded a motion to suspend the rules
and move discussion regarding Northeast Rehabilitation up in the agenda for immediate
discussion.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7 - 0) for; motion carried.



Northeast Rehab (NR) was represented by Atty. Ari Pollack (Pollack), Pollack introduced
John Prochilo, CEO; Lester Schindel, CFO; Charlie Champagne, Operations Manager; the
Planning and Development team for the project consisting of Bradlee Mezquita of Tighe & Bond
doing the civil engineering; Todd Hanson and Mark Moeller of JSA doing the architectural
work. Pollack also indicated that Todd Sigmon, an executive at Wentworth Douglass Hospital
(WD) neighbor to rear of site, attended to show support for the proposal as the abutting tenant,
but had to leave due to another commitment. The facility is located at 105 Corporate Drive and
NR is looking to double its efforts. The planning experts indicate the need of two variances from
the PDA Zoning Ordinance for the expansion plan. Pollack provided each Board member with a
signed copy of the requested variances (Board materials contained unsigned version) as well as a
plan showing the existing footprint of the facility in the pink and the proposed two story
expansion in the orange. Pollack indicated that NR will be presenting a Restrictive Covenant
relating to the WD land to the rear. Pollack described the orange expansion area as traversing
linearly across the frontage and a leg that goes toward the rear and setback. NR asked to deviate
from the applicable 50" rear setback and observe a 10 setback from the lease line boundary. NR
did consider a lease line adjustment with WD, who was amenable with an adjustment. However,
WD’s chlordane (old insecticide / pesticide applied in areas around the Tradeport during the Air
Force era) pile needs to be managed onsite; WD’s pile is located to the rear of NR (the area that
would have been the lease line adjustment). After considering alternatives, NR decided the best
approach would be to leave the management of the pile with WD and deal with this issue with
both a request for a deviation from a 50° to 10 set back as well as obtain a covenant from WD
not to disturb the pile in their front yard and/or develop the area. Essentially this would provide
the full 50° set back by virtual of the 10" being observed by NR and the Restrictive Covenant
WD is placing on its own lot. The forms / documents have been reviewed by PDA staff. NR has
asked for relief from the hardship of the pile (NR does not want to take on the liability for the
pile) and for the Board to recommend to the City of Portsmouth (COP) a variance from the 50
setback to a 10’ setback on the condition that the Covenant be finalized and recorded.

Second, the expansion places NR under the requirement that a second loading berth
would be necessary. However, NR has one loading berth and one works for them, NR doesn’t
want two loading berths. Rather than creating the hardship of building and operating something
that is not needed, NR is asking for the relief to have only one loading berth. NR still has a long
process ahead with the COP and lenders, and asked for Board recommendation regarding the
concept plan showing the expansion and the two variances from the Pease Zoning ordinances.
Pollack indicated the individuals he has with him at the presentation can answer any questions
the Board may have.

Chairman Smith (Smith) asks if any of the Board members has any questions. Director
Peter Loughlin (Loughlin) had a question concerning parking where requirement is 66 and NR
has provided 147, Loughlin asked if it is NR’s experience that this use generates a higher parking
ratio than normally required by PDA. Pollack indicated in the early stages of construction of the
existing facility it was thought to take advantage of the space so that parking wouldn’t be an
issue. There is a stormwater plan that can handle the impervious coverage. As approaching the

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



expansion it is recognized that NR is over parking requirements and with the expansion they
remain in compliance so not going to add any additional impervious if it can be avoided.

Smith asks where NR will be placing its (soil) pile and Pollack responded that NR will
add to its existing pile at the corner of Corporate Drive and the road going to the facilities behind
NR. Ifit reaches a height that the pile creates a hazard for traffic then a second new pile will be
created but NR does not want three piles.

Director Peggy Lamson (Lamson) indicated she had been over to NR recently and
complimented the site work and what NR is doing with the vegetation as it is bringing more
color to Corporate Drive.

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete
negotiations, finalize, and execute the Pease Rehab/Wentworth Douglass restrictive
covenant; and to approve, following any required approvals, the concept plan for 105
Corporate Drive as submitted by Pease Rehab, LL.C, including the requests for deviations
from the rear setback and loading berth requirements as shown on plans attached hereto
and incorporated herein; all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria .J. Stowell,
P.E., Engineering Manager, dated August 13,2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7 - 0) for; motion carried.

V. Old Business:
A. Approvals:
1. Farley White

Chairman Smith recognizes Director Loughlin to make a motion to move into non-public.
Director Loughlin moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors enter non-public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 (2)(d) for

the purpose of discussing the acquisition, sale or lease of property.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7 - 0) for; motion carried.

The meeting moved into non-public, the room was cleared, the video streaming turned
off, but the voice recorder remained on,

Smith asked the three individuals to introduce themselves; Attorney John Dougherty
(Dougherty) of Nutter McClennen & Fish LLP, counsel for the Farley White interests; John
Power (Power) and Elizabeth Rucci from Farley White (FW).

Dougherty indicated that FW currently has a 127,000 sq. ft. Class A office building at
100 Arboretum and has been in negotiations with PDA to obtain a lease line revision to expand
the premises which would enable a new 73,000 sq. ft. building (likely a multi-tenant office
building). With respect to 100 Arboretum there is an existing operating lease that everyone is
operating under which has about 40 to 45 years left in an unexpired term; the business

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



arrangement with PDA with what is known as 90 Arboretum would be an extension of term to
74 years and the rent is being recast from having 5 year CPI adjustments to annual CPI
adjustments and a 25 year fair market value reset. During the last several months there has been
tremendous progress between PDA and FW in negotiating the ground lease and FW was advised
by PDA staff that there are outstanding issues needing Board approval. The August 9™ letter
submitted by FW summarizes the outstanding issues which included specific lease language.

The short list of issues, 3 in particular, that FW looked to preserve the existing language which is
contained in the current lease and to be applied to the new arrangement.

The 3 areas are:

1. Application of the insurance proceeds after a casualty occurring: Language in
existing lease indicates a clause that lender’s counsel (Goulston & Storrs representing
Berkshire Bank) requires remain in the new lease. Language states that the leasehold
mortgagee can apply insurance proceeds after a casualty to pay down its loan, should
it choose. FW stated it would be unlikely, although not uncommon (ie.;ifa 10year
loan and a casualty occurs in the last year) lenders would say it will not release the
money to rebuild and a new deal is renegotiated.

2. Sublease approvals: Pertaining to the office / spaces leases that FW would enter into
with subtenants within the building (this concept is in the existing lease as well).

3. Recognition: The Board recognizes the FW tenants in place if FW (the middle man
were out of the picture) that PDA would not evict the tenants. The current language
provides that those tenants couldn’t be in default and the tenants’ rents would need to
cover the PDA rent.

Even though the term is being extended these are important business issues to FW. In a
multi-tenant Class A office building scenario which are important issues to keep in a future deal
and FW requests they stay in place.

There were also discussions of FW having Right of First Refusal (ROFR) if PDA, for
whatever reason were to sell. The current language is if PDA provides ROFR to another tenant
at Pease, then FW would have that benefit as well.

Last issue is the rent schedule. There have been delays in the permitting and request that
the new rent commencement date for the new property be June to allow a FW a 9 month period
to basically construct the building and lease it up and not pay rent where it doesn’t have the
ability to receive rent from subtenants.

Hinchee indicated that there is an additional point that Dougherty did not cover which
was the most recent draft of the lease has all of the rents adjusting on the same date and FW is
not willing to do that.

Power, of FW, spoke to the comment to indicate that it is not that FW is not willing,
rather it is highly unusual because the site is being expanded and a new building being built on it
as opposed to a site being acquired and constructing a building. There is an existing situation
and that lease would commence upon the signing of the new agreement (hypothetically

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



September 1st). Trying to marry the two together being that FW has a building which has no
ability for revenue and will have no revenue until the building can be built (9 months or longer —
prepared to go into the ground immediately) and FW has an existing building that will go on the
new rent schedule essentially immediately.

Hinchee reminded the Board that the only approval PDA has from the FAA is to reset a
lease to year zero and provide a 74 year term is if PDA does a new lease with the addition of
property or addition of construction. PDA does not have the authority to use an old lease format
and add a term onto it if resetting to year 0. Smith looked for clarification by indicating - if no
building is built, Hinchee indicates that W would receive an amendment to extend its existing
term so that from the first day of the lease (which about 20 years has already run) so the total
term from day one of the lease to the end of lease would be 74 years. So the way it has been
currently drafted is that FW would be getting only one lease for the entirety of the properties, it
starts at 0 and goes 74 years; so would have had the benefit of the property for 94 years.

Smith stated that the Board is interested in getting a deal done with FW as a new office
building would be great, believed the Board and FW to be close. It is necessary to understand
where FW is coming from where alternatives have been offered, want to be flexible without
violating any FAA requirements.

Power indicated that FW has brought a rendering (which was passed among the Board
members) on what FW is proposing. Hinchee has indicated that all past renderings have been
circulated to the Board in terms of concept plans and designs but believes what the Board is
currently viewing is more up-to-date.

Smith reviewed the list of outstanding items:

1. Right of First Refusal (ROFR): As it is currently written, if PDA grants a ROFR to
any other tenant PDA would extend the same offer to F W; asked if that is acceptable
and response from FW individuals is in the affirmative. Hinchee indicated that is a
policy decision for the Board so it has not been included, but if agreed on it. .
Dougherty indicates that Hinchee has drafted language that FW has approved.

2. Insurance proceeds: Smith indicated that PDA staff offered to include the provision
in the lease as long as FW were to provide security to PDA for the promise to rebuild
in the event of a loss. Smith asked if that is a provision acceptable to FW.,
Dougherty indicated that as FW understood it there was a guarantee, so the lease
currently obligates FW to rebuild after the event of a casualty or a casualty of greater
than 50% FW can walk away they don’t have to rebuild. Dougherty understood
PDA was looking for a security to guarantee it would rebuild the buildings.
Dougherty went on to indicate that FW owns over one million square feet in New
Hampshire; Hinchee further stated that FW does but the tenant in this instance, the
obligated party, does not have any asset except this building. Hinchee clarified the
information to the Board that if the mortgage lender uses the proceeds FW will not
have insurance proceeds to rebuild and there is a contractual obligation to do so.
However, this particular entity (has the right to sell the building to any other entity

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



without the approval of PDA) the next entity does not have an obligation to rebuild
and may or may not have the assets to rebuild. PDA did not seek just a guarantee
(Atty. Manchester offered a number of alternatives which may have been satisfactory
for security) but the concept alone was rejected / no interest. Dougherty indicated
that FW is a developer with sufficient means and again indicates the million square
feet only in New Hampshire, FW owns a lot of property in New England and Florida.
The request is not something FW will agree to; FW will be motivated to rebuild. If
complete casualty, there is certain value there (intangible value). FW cannot envision
a scenario where it would not rebuild. If the lender indicates that there is 6 months
left on the term, the lender leaves — FW will negotiate with the lender, different
lender, self-finance, whatever. Dougherty indicated that it is unusual to have a
guarantee or Letter of Credit (LOC) to stand behind an obligation to rebuild. FW’s
position would be the concern of FW not standing behind this.

3. Subleases / Tenant recognition: Smith indicated that PDA staff agreed to
automatically approve the extensions of all existing tenant subleases with the
provision that they have an opportunity to review the subleases. PDA staff has
offered to give them the same complete recognition FW has now, if can approve all
new subleases. PDA does not need to approve the expansion of an existing lease or
an existing tenant taking additional space. It is necessary to see all new subleases if
PDA is going to recognize those tenants (that is how it was tied together). PDA listed
items separately because recognition can be attained as requested if subleases can be
viewed. Subleases are delegated to the Executive Director for approval and every
month subleases are reported to the Board (of all tenants and some tenants have 28
buildings). FW lumped items together; PDA indicated can provide the recognition
but needs to see subleases in advance. Smith asked FW what the hang up is on PDA
not reviewing the subleases. Dougherty indicated FW doesn’t have it now and the
feeling is it shouldn’t change. The concern is that there could be delays (i.e.; FW
does not want to be in a situation where the Board, for whatever reason, indicates that
this is not an appropriate tenant to have in its building or there could be delays in
getting the approval). FW believes it is fast an efficient in turnarounds in processing
deals and building out space and dealing with tenants. Power indicated that
traditionally speaking most loans have high threshold levels for lender approval or
have no lender approval on leases, partially due to timing. In this deal, and on this
building, the financing is being wrapped into both buildings (100 and 90). The lender
has agreed to a lender consent threshold of 25,000 sq. ft. or bigger (so lender doesn’t
have a say of 25,000 sq. ft. or larger) based on FW’s reputation of doing a good job
and being responsible to investment partners and existing customers. FW believes it
has done a respectable if not a commendable job on the property operating at
Arboretum Drive. Hinchee indicated the necessity for PDA staff looks at the existing
policy and the fact that FW has free reign to transfer property to another entity. The
timing issue was never addressed / concerns about delay. Hinchee indicated that if
the timing issue had been brought to her attention she would have negotiated a
timeframe within the lease so the review of sublease would be performed within a
short period of time and return the consent back to FW, so long as standards were
met. What PDA had been told was because FW didn’t have this language in its

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



existing lease and they were not willing to do it in the future. Hinchee affirmed that
approval is delegated to the Executive Director so long as it meets the 4 standard
points in the lease. Smith indicated it does not need to wait to come to the Board;
Hinchee indicated the sublease gets reported to the Board following execution and
that a copy of the delegation was previously provided to counsel. Dougherty asked if
the recognition was removed from the table, what would the value be to the Board of
approving subleases? Dougherty further stated that at this price point FW would not
be leasing to an ice cream shop / fly by night entity; therefore, not sure what the
PDA’s standard of review would be. Executive Director David Mullen (Mullen)
indicated the concern of precedence as it is in other leases. Mullen further indicated
being a state agency PDA treats everyone equally and without differentiation so it
would be a burden for PDA to break precedence. Dougherty stated it is EW’s
precedence that it is in its current lease. Hinchee reiterated that this is a new lease,
the Letter of Intent (LOI) and prior conversations made it clear, this is the benefit of
the value being added to the existing property by giving the extended term. Power
stated FW is not looking to take advantage of anyone, FW believes in what PDA has
done, being in this area and City of Portsmouth and Town of Newington. FW has an
agreement and has no need to change that agreement. If Board decides FW shouldn’t
build 90 Arboretum Drive FW will remain with its existing agreement.

Smith addressed Power for clarification of all of the items with the exception of the one
area that the Board would have some flexibility. As mentioned earlier by Hinchee, the Board
may go to June 2020 to start the rent. However, what Smith heard was the Board does not have
any flexibility in the FAA rules that once a lease is reset to 0 it has to be a Fair Market Value
(FMV) at that time, it cannot be at the existing rent was. Hinchee affirmed, she further stated
that PDA does have leases that are in excess of FMYV and those are being rewritten at its current
rent —rent is not decreasing. This information has been provided to FW and FW’s point is it is
not an office building (i.e.; WD -- seen as medical use). Part of FW’s parcel is already in excess
of amount PDA is going to be charging going forward. FW will be paying $17,800 but the
blended rate is $17,300 and going to $17,400 so it is a very de minimis amount of rent.
Administratively, the Board has made the decision that part of the reason to go forwarded with
the leases for longer terms is to get a blended rate, one rate for each parcel / tenant and move
forward. It is an administrative change from the policy of the Board which is why it was raised.
At some point FW will go to FMV, not interested in arguing the existing lease. The existing
property (which is slightly under F MV), if it ever fell substantially below, under the provisions
of the lease that are subject to the FAA grant assurances the FAA could, and have at other
airports, stated it is not going to recognize the rate. Hinchee indicated she doesn’t believe it will
happen at Pease due to the way PDA has structured the adjustment provisions of the lease (one
rate one start). Hinchee stated that Smith sat through all negotiations with the FAA; FAA had
two issues and one specifically was receiving FMV on properties the entire time. Power asked if
the other was PDA would have to change all the existing terms of the lease. Power further stated
that FW is happy to pay FMV, FW is not arguing the economics of the transaction and looking
forward to get the building under construction. What FW is trying to do is relieve some of the
burdens on the PDA on approvals and things on what we do today and are operating under.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22, 2019



Smith called for comments or questions from the Board. Loughlin had some comments
and supported what the Chair stated that PDA hoped the building would go. Did not need to see
the rendering due to the fact that everything that FW has done is first class. To FW it is a great
idea and it is, but the regulator (Town/PDA) doesn’t always view it in the same manner.
Meaning if Town/PDA grants a particular approval every other resident in the town
(landowner/taxpayer) wants the same treatment. When PDA has had policies and programs in
effect that work he has been reluctant to change and over the years has been reluctant to disagree
with PDA’s legal advice. When PDA started out 30 years ago it was a real question as to
whether this was going to work out at all - in New Hampshire no one did long-term leases
(where you lease the land and you build your own building). Loughlin is very reluctant and
understands FW’s arguments — as a regulator sees the need for consistency. Dougherty
indicated that Hinchee has been a tremendous advocate and Susan Manchester both have done a
terrific job. What is unique with FW is it has these 3 provisions in current deal so it is hard to
give that up — that is one of the hurdles.

Smith stated that the ROFR language was agreed upon by PDA staff and FW and if the
Board were to approve that; and if the Board approves what FW is looking for with the insurance
proceeds; if PDA writes into the tenant recognition a turnaround of three (3) business days by the
Executive Director so PDA is still reviewing it but it is being turned around in a timely fashion —
Hinchee confirms the approval of subleases and Smith affirms the approval of subleases; we
extend the rent beginning date to June 2020 but at the proposed blended rate of $17,475 — is that
something FW could live with. Power asked if there would be a reasonableness standard on the
consent. Hinchee indicated that there is a reasonableness standard already on the sublease
consents in the lease — it is already written in. Power wanted to confirm; Hinchee again stated
“not unreasonable withheld or delayed” is the standard. Power asked with regard to the
recognition that would be given pending the approval of the subleases. Hinchee affirms that the
recognition provision will be as it is in the existing lease, it is sublease approval provision that
will change. Hinchee indicated that as long as PDA receives the sublease for approval we
approved 1t and FW gets recognition. Power asked if it was for all leases; Hinchee indicated it
is cumulative -- all leases. Power asked if there is a minimum size (1,000 ft; 500 ft; 2,000 ft);
Hinchee confirms there is no size limitation. Power stated he is anticipating his heirs will
inherit this transaction. Power indicates from his perspective that is an acceptable compromise,
unless he is missing something. Dougherty indicates the other way to do it would be not to have
the sublease approved but to have the recognition in the new building. So in other words leases
above a certain square foot threshold in the new building... Power, no offense to but it becomes
six and one half dozen of another... Dougherty indicated that subleasing... recognition happens
when you are in default. Hinchee indicated that PDA would prefer to see all of the subleases; it
is the practice of PDA and there are practical reasons for it. Hinchee stated that there have been
times when PDA has reviewed a lease and the use is permitted but the use language deviates
from the statutory language or zoning language and this is brought to the tenant’s attention.
Power asked if PDA would sign off on a form lease so if FW knew what the ground rules were
upfront and FW would know the form so wouldn’t get into a problem. Hinchee indicated that
would not be an issue; Power stated that was reasonable. Smith indicates that the Board does
not believe there is a concern with the subleases that FW is going to do. What this does is it
doesn’t set a precedent for the Board with other owners down the road but it provides FW with
the security knowing it is going to be turned around and approved on a timely basis and it isn’t

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



precedent setting for the Board. Power asked either Mullen or Hinchee if it were possible, as
part of the process that if during a negotiation a question arises FW could contact PDA and ask
for clarification if it is okay; Mullen and Hinchee indicated the expectation of FW reaching out
to PDA for clarification. The issue on the insurance proceeds that has been explained to the
Board is that PDA does not have this in any other lease (audit performed) and would not expect
the Board would agree to this in the future. PDA does not have a tenant with this language in its
existing lease so would not expect that it would be an automatic approval or that the Board
would be changing policy on any particular point; just that there is a tenant with an exception
already in its lease and so you will accept carrying it through to the new lease.

Smith asks the Board how it feels on what he has laid out as a compromise. Directors
Allard (Allard) and Levesque (Levesque) indicate approval. Dougherty asked to clarify the
sublease approval concept, so after 3 business days to reasonably approve. For some reason if
PDA did not respond and Power needed to close a deal and it would be deemed approved if he
didn’t receive anything after a certain period of time; Smith indicates the Board would be okay
with that. Torr indicates that the Board stil] has not resolved the insurance issue. Smith
indicates that what Hinchee previously explained would be that if the Board were to agree to
what FW is asking that this would not be precedent setting and it would not be deemed automatic
in future lease agreements and that the reason behind accepting it for FW is because it is in its
existing lease and the Board is granting an extension of that provision in FW’s new lease.
Loughlin asked if there is any other tenant this would affect; Hinchee responded not that PDA is
aware of. After the insurance discussion came up on this lease PDA did a quick audit of the big
tenant leases and it is not in the leases; the leases have the provision that the mortgage lender
apply the proceeds in accordance with the other terms of the lease. Hinchee indicated that
Dougherty had a conversation with Atty. Manchester regarding the mortgage and since he had
not seen the mortgage yet, often the mortgage requires the rebuild as well. Smith asked Hinchee
if there is any vote required and Hinchee responded that a vote would be taken in non-public.
PDA has authority to negotiate but does not believe these points are covered. Hinchee explained
the need for a motion to extend the authority to the Executive Director to complete negotiations
and finalize the lease agreement in accordance with the discussions we have had, the
presentation today since Dougherty has made the presentation for FW we can go with that,

Hinchee indicated the need to vote to come out of non-public session and stated did not
see the need to keep the minutes confidential which gives PDA everything on the record which is
needed. The Board can immediately take a vote in accordance with the discussion. Smith asked
FW if there was anything else from its end. Dougherty indicated that the Board would go into
public session and FW wouldn’t have to make a presentation; Hinchee affirms. Dougherty
asked as far as process for finalizing the lease, Hinchee indicated that she will be unavailable
until Tuesday to get anything turned around. Dougherty asked if it could get signed next week;
Hinchee stated that Mullen has authority to sign and there is very little to rewrite. Power stated
that he was not sure whether the Board recognized the momentous event that 90 Arboretum will
be as it will be the only building of its kind in New England and east of Minneapolis which is a
mast timber frame building which is sustainable and LEED certified. Power indicated that he
cannot think of a better place to have this be a “ground breaking building”. [t will get attention
and people will come. Smith indicated the Board’s willingness to show some flexibility and that
the reputation and track record at the FW current site has been a great benefit to the Tradeport.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



10

Chairman Smith moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors come out of non-public session.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7 - 0) for; motion carried.

The Board came out of non-public session at 11:38 a.m. and Director Lamson
disconnected from the meeting at 11:41 a.m. The meeting reconvened at 11:45 a.m.

Chairman Smith moved and Director Allard seconded a motion that pursuant to NH
RSA 91-A:3 (III) the divulgence of information discussed at its non-public session of
August 22, 2019 meeting related to the acquisition, sale or lease of property do not require
confidentiality.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
Chairman Smith moved and Director Torr seconded that the Executive Director

complete negotiations and finalize the lease agreement with Farley White in accordance
with the discussions that took place in the non-public session.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

VI.  Finance:
A. Reports:
1. FY 2019 Financial Report for the Twelve Month Period Ending June

30,2019 (Preliminary)

Finance Director [rv Canner (Canner) indicated PDA is preparing for its year-end audit;
have gone through many closings and have the certifieds ready to go. The auditors will be at
PDA as of September 3rd and it is anticipated they will stay the week.

The trends in terms of higher operating revenues has continued throughout the year.
PDA has seen an increase of just over 6% than budgeted which comes from pay-for-parking;
wharfage and dockage activities, and fuel revenues (both areas exceeded the PDA budgeted
numbers); and overran expenses just under 3%; when you bring the two numbers together there
is a positive variance. PDA’s most current numbers getting ready for the auditors that number is
positive after going through an aggressive closing process. Expenses which have been discussed
(i.e.; personnel services) is on budget; there is a charge out which indicates the location that the
wages are for (i.e.; Airport, Skyhaven etc.). Staffing as of June 30" was 157 individuals and
current payroll is for 161 individuals; this number will be reduced at the end of the summer
season. The balance sheet shown is better than last year, the big change which is not indicated is
a reduction in pension liability and OPEB liability by 12%. The construction process indicates a
reduction in capital expenditures primarily in the areas of the Barge Dock; terminal (design work
etc.), Golf Course equipment and initial monies for the runway and modifications.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



11

The pay-for-parking and fuel flowage which were new items added in F Y18 exceeded
budgeted expectations. Enplanements as of June 30 up by approximately 40% close to 69,000.
Skyhaven for the year ended with a deficit in terms of operations. Historically since PDA has
taken on Skyhaven it shows that the revenues, which are tied to the rentals, don’t justify the
expenses. The fuel side came in slightly over what was budgeted. Cumulatively PDA has
absorbed approximately $1.7 million in capital expenditures and debt repayment.

The golf course operations as of June 30" (fiscal year) show an increase in operating
revenues by 8% influenced by public play. Overall operating income greater than budgeted,
Grill 28 came in 4% greater than last year and simulator was up by about 12%.

Port unrestricted funds were up from wharfage and dockage fees influenced the positive
16% increase in operating revenues shown.

These are preliminary numbers and do not expect any surprises when the auditors
commence,

2 Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending April 30,
2020

Canner indicates that the cash balance is anticipated to decrease by 85% which is due to
the anticipated activities at the terminal expansion during the next nine months and the runway
work modifications as well. Anticipates that PDA will have to go into debt in late December and
in April may need to draw the Revolving Line of Credit (RLOQ) (indicated that the RLOC is $15
million) which will be due to financial commitments over the next several months. Indicated
that as of June 30" PDA had just over $37 million dollars in commitments under contract
(terminal, runway and Barge Dock).

3. Revolving Loan Fund

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and
Execution of Revolving Loan Fund Documents,” Mr. Mullen reported the a loan in the amount of
$27,000 to Scott Heisey at an interest rate of 4% for the purchase of a vessel, gear, equipment and
accessories.

VIL Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and
Execution of License Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported the following:

A. Reports:
1. Big Brothers Big Sisters — 62 Durham Street

Mr. Mullen indicated that Big Brothers Big Sisters (“BBBS”) has been granted a Right of
Entry to use the parking area adjacent to 62 Durham Street on September 21, 2019 from 4:00
p.m. to 11:59 p.m. for the purpose of parking BBBS event participant vehicles and being hosted
by Port City Air.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22, 2019



12

2. National Visa Center - 100 New Hampshire Avenue

Mr. Mullen indicated that the National Visa Center (“NVC”) was granted a Right of Entry
to utilize 100 = parking spaces at 100 New Hampshire Avenue from 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m.
on Friday, July 26, 2019, for the purpose of providing NVC employees a location to park while
NVC is hosting a Naturalization Ceremony at its location of 32 Rochester Avenue.

VIII. Leases:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

A. Reports:
I. Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and

Seacoast Business Machines, Incorporated

Mr. Mullen indicated that 222 International, Limited Partnership entered into a sublease
with Seacoast Business Machines, Incorporated (“SBM™) for 937 square feet within the leased
premises at 195 New Hampshire Avenue, for a period of three (3) years, with an effective date of
July 1,2019. SBM will use the premises for general office use and related uses. Director
Lamson approved the sublease.

2. Sublease between 200 International, Limited Partnership and Landry
Architects, PLLC

Mr. Mullen indicated that 200 International, Limited Partnership entered into a sublease
with Landry Architects, PLLC for 1,943 square feet within the leased premises at 200
International Drive, for a period of five (5) years, with an effective date of August 15, 2019.
Landry Architects, PLLC will use the premises for general office use and related uses. Director
Lamson approved the sublease.

3. Sublease between 2 International Group, LLC and HII Fleet Support
Group, LL.C

Mr. Mullen indicated that 2 International Group, LLC entered into a sublease with HII
Fleet Support Group, LLC (“HII”) for 4,513 square feet within the leased premises at 2
International Drive, for a period of five (5) years and two (2) months, with an effective date of
November 1, 2019. HII will use the premises for general office use and related uses. Director
Lamson approved the sublease.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



13

4. Next Level Now, Inc. — Exercise of Renewal Option

Mr. Mullen indicated that Next Level Now, Inc. has exercised the first of two One (1)
year renewal options for property located at 16 Pease Boulevard and its Lease has been extended
through July 31, 2020.

B. Approvals:
1. Northeast Rehabilitation Expansion — Concept Plan
This item was moved and addressed at the beginning of the Board meeting.
IX.  Contracts/Agreements:

A. Reports:
1. Sea Wall Failure - Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier — Appledore
Marine Engineering

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and
Execution of Documents and Expenditure of Funds for Emergency Repairs” Mr. Mullen reported
that PDA-DPH entered into a contract with Appldedore Marine Engineering, LLC in an amount
not to exceed $42,950 with respect to the Sea Wall Failure, Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier to
monitor the potential failure and inspect the sea wall tieback system, which is ten (10) feet below
the existing grade. Director Loughlin granted his consent to this request on June 17, 2019.

P48 Purchase of Replacement Computers from Dell

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Mr. Mullen indicated that
Director Peter Loughlin authorized the purchase of computer replacement equipment from Dell
in the amount of $5,859.13. Director Loughlin granted his consent to this request on August 1,
2019.

3. Solar Feasibility Study - Competitive Energy Services, LLC (CES)

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Mr. Mullen indicated that and that
Director Robert Allard authorized PDA to enter into a contract with Competitive Energy Services,
LLC (CES) in an amount of $7,000 to perform a Solar Feasibility Study at Pease Tradeport, Port
of New Hampshire and Skyhaven Airport (DAW) to include an overview of potential installation
sites, whether on buildings or parcels. Director Allard granted his consent to this request on
August 9, 2019,

B. Approvals:
1. Allied Equipment, LLC — Weedtechnics Model SW800 Steamwand
System for Weed Control

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



14

Director Levesque moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into
an agreement with Allied Equipment, LLC (“Allied”) in a total amount not to exceed
$21,841.00 for the purchase of a Weedtechnics Model SW800 Steamwand System
(“Weedtechnics”) weed control machine for use at the Pease Tradeport, Pease Golf Course,
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM”) and Skyhaven Airport (DAW); all in
accordance with the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Airport Director, dated April 4, 2019
(scribner error as date should read August 8,2019).

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver
of the RFP requirement based on the following reasons:

* The Weedtehcnics SW800 is the only locally distributed organic weed steamer
and has been purchased for a consistent price by neighboring municipalities.

* The current status of herbicide application licensing and permitting near a
watershed will challenge the ability of the airport to stay in compliance with
FAA Regulations.

Note: This motion required 5 affirmative votes.

Discussion: Director Bohenko (Bohenko) indicated that the City of Portsmouth (COP)
had tested the item and it has limited capacity in what it can do. PDA Deputy Director / PSM
Airport Director Paul Brean (Brean) indicated that the item worked well in the PDA application
primarily along the cracks and along the airfield. Bohenko indicated that PDA probably doesn’t
want to put the chemicals down anymore; Brean agreed.

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote; motion carried.

/55 NRC East Environmental Services, Inc. - Emergency Spill Response &
Waste Disposal Services

Director Torr moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to award and enter
into a contract with NRC East Environmental Services, Inc. of Franklin, MA to provide
Emergency Spill Response & Waste Disposal Services to the Pease Development Authority.
The contract is for a period of three (3) years with two (2) one (1) year options to renew; all
in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E. Manager - Engineering, dated
August 8, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

X. Signs:
A. Reports:
1. 325 Corporate DR I, LLC - Signage Change

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



15

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of
Minor Revisions to Existing Signs” Mr. Mullen reported that PDA has approved a minor signage
change request by The Kane Company to update existing signage at property located at 325
Corporate Drive. Director Loughlin granted his consent to this request on July 11, 2019,

XI.  Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals

A. Reports:

1. Golf Course Operations

Golf Course General Manager Scott DeVito (DeVito) indicated that the maintenance
department just finished its aeration of the greens (the last couple of years this has been targeted
to be done the third week in August). The course has its annual membership drive commencing
Monday, September 9" with Pay Now Play Now. September is a busy tournament month with
over 750 pre-booked rounds.

2. Airport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

Deputy Director / Airport Director Paul Brean (Brean) indicated that it has been the
busiest July in the history of the terminal with 21,000 passengers coming and going (scheduled
and charter enplanements). Strong fuel flowage for the month of J uly due to heavy cargo and
larger aircraft used for technical stops. Revenue parking had about 900 transactions for the month
of July and are above our projected revenue. Seasonal airline services are wrapping up and the
NHANG received the first two of the KC46s. Terminal construction is moving along.

c) Noise Line Reports (June and July)

There were a total of six (6) noise inquiries in June, 2019. Four (4) inquires were for
rotor-wing aircraft (from two residences - one from Portsmouth, NH and the other from South
Berwick, ME) all were concerning Seacoast Helicopters; one (1) inquiry was for fixed wing
aircraft (from Durham, NH concerning two C130 aircraft) and the last inquiry was for both fixed
and rotor—wing aircraft flying over the University of New Hampshire (from the same Durham,
NH residence indicated above).

There were no noise inquiries in July, 2019.
Director Levesque (Levesque) asked about the Russian jet and Brean responded that it is
a Ukrainian Antonov - 124 doing contract work for Raytheon.
B. Approvals:
i. Bills for Legal Services
Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development

Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total
amount of $79,504.64 for legal services to the Pease Development Authority by KutakRock

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22, 2019



16

in the amount of $1,107.00 and Sheehan, Phinney, Bass & Green in the amount of
$78,397.64.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
ii. IT Director — New Position

Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that in accordance with the
provisions of Section 3.11 of the Second Amendment to By-Laws of the Pease Development
Authority, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and
authorizes the Executive Director to create the position of Information Technology (IT)
Director and to immediately fill said position with an appropriately qualified candidate; all
in accordance with the memorandum of David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated July 8,
2019.

Discussion: Mullen indicated that Berry Dunn had done an assessment of PDA’s IT and
indicated that there were areas that needed addressing so the responsibility of this new position
would be to take care of those issues and it will help to take PDA further into the future. Bohenko
asked if this person would be for a lot of support on desktop computers. Mullen indicated that
currently PDA has Jess doing all of the site work, so this new individual will give a larger view
assessment and set us up into the future. Bohenko asked if with storage PDA is in the “cloud” and
Mullen indicated he did not believe so. Bohenko also asked if the new individual would be looking
at the cloud and Mullen affirmed. Lastly, Bohenko asked if the IT person would updating the
website; Mullen indicated there is room for that, further indicated that the website is maintained
by Liz and an intern who is assisting as well. Mullen indicated the IT person would provide
direction PDA has not had in the past. Bohenko asked about going to electronic packets which are
done at the City by utilizing iPads and everything can be stored so you can go back and look at
prior information; the only cost would probably be 10 iPads. Bohenko asks if this [T position
would be replacing a position; Mullen indicates it would be a new position.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
iii. Security Specialist/Trusted Agent— New Position

Director Allard moved and Director Loughlin seconded that in accordance with the
provisions of Section 3.11 of the Second Amendment to By-Laws of the Pease Development
Authority, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and
authorizes the Executive Director to create the position of Security Specialist/Trusted
Agent and to immediately fill said position with an appropriately qualified candidate; all in
accordance with a memorandum from Paul E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport
Director, dated July 23, 2019.

Discussion: Bohenko asked if this was a fulltime position; Brean indicated it was and
benefited. Bohenko asked where there are two new positions has PDA not filled two positions;
Canner responded two unfilled positions. Bohenko stated keeping the table organization the same
and reallocating resources to other positions. Mullen indicated no they would be in addition;

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



17

Canner indicated these would be two incremental positions to the staff. Bohenko again asked if
these would be reallocating positions due to changes in requirements; Mullen indicated two new
positions. Bohenko stated that would be two new to the two open positions; Canner indicated that
was a question an operational question for Brean. Brean indicated that some positions have been
outsourced in this calendar year and the intent is not to backfill those. Bohenko asked if net
operation for Brean will be the same and Brean affirms and as plans move forward for succession
planning PDA may have someone to shadow [a position] but would eventually be cut back.

Bohenko asked if through the transition period there would be an elimination of position(s);
Mullen indicated PDA did not think it could at this point but would take a look as time moves
forward.

Smith added that the Executive Committee had gone through the organizational chart with
staff and discussed the new positions. From the Executive Committee’s perspective, it is
appropriate given the needs and growth on the airport side and the fact that there isn’t an IT person
onsite. Bohenko indicated that it wasn’t about the positions, was wondering if there was anything
that wasn’t going to be filled.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

iv. Acceptance of potential Congestion Mitigation Air Quality
(CMAQ) grants

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete and
submit to the NH Department of Transportation the grant applications for two potentially
eligible air quality improvement and congestion mitigation projects from the Congestion
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Program and to:

1. Accept, if offered, a grant in the amount $40,000 in CMAQ funding for the
installation of electrical vehicle charging stations at the golf course and airport
terminal parking lots and expend $10,000 in matching funds; and

% Accept, if offered, a grant in the amount $360,000 in CMAQ funding for
construction of a right turn lane on New Hampshire Ave and expend $80,000 in
matching funds;

all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E. Manager -
Engineering, dated August 2, 2019.

Discussion: Bohenko asked if the charging stations would be available to the publicor just
golf carts; Stowell indicated the charging stations would be for the automobiles of
public/customers at the golf course and the terminal. Bohenko asked if it would be free to the
public or would there be a charge. Stowell indicated that PDA was looking at a swipe/charge.
Bohenko indicated that there are rules to indicate you can’t charge for the electricity, indicated
charging would have to be looked at (issues with charging and doing it a certain way). Stowell
indicated you can’t be a utility so it might have to be some sort of fixed charge.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



18

Allard asked PDA chances on getting this (50/50); Stowell indicated attended a meeting
and were told how much money was available statewide — it is very competitive and assumes the
COP is putting in some applications as well. Allard asked if this was for electric cars; Stowell
affirmed for customers if they have an electric car and want to drive it to the golf course they can
be charging vehicle while golfing. Allard asked how many electric cars in New Hampshire.
Stowell indicated that there are more and more (Lonza has a few parking stations in its garage and
Bottomline has some parking stations). Stowell further indicated that she believed there are four
or five tenants who provide electric cars for its employees.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

XII. Division of Ports and Harbors:

Geno J. Marconi (“Marconi), Division Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors
(“DPH”), reported on Division activities, and the reports before the Board represent the current
business at the DPH.

A. Reports:
1. Port Advisory Council — Meeting Minutes of May 8, 2019

Marconi indicated that the Port Advisory Council met May 8, 2019 and the minutes are
included in the agenda; the Council adjourns for the month of July and August so will pick up
again in September. Anticipates that the June minutes will be approved at the September meeting.

2. Commercial Mooring for Hire Permit Application — Kittery Point
Yacht Club

Marconi indicated that DPH received a request for a commercial mooring for hire from
Kittery Point Yacht Club and that under the Code of Administration of Rules there is an ability
to have a Commercial for Hire allowed; upon review by the Harbor Master a recommendation is
made to the Executive Director who is allowed to sign off through the Delegation of Authority.

3. Request to Transfer Commercial Mooring — Adam Baker to Jason
Townsend

Marconi indicated that a Commercial Mooring Transfer has been requested and met the
Code of Administration of Rules; upon review by the Harbor Master a recommendation was

made to the Executive Director who signed off through the Delegation of Authority.

4., Portsmouth Fish Pier Sea Wall Update — Appledore Marine
Engineering Report

Marconi indicated that the Sea Wall has worsened; proposals have been requested to
stabilize the wall. DPH received one proposal from Riverside Pickering and its proposal was

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



19

approximately $24,000 to go in and drive 8 pilings on an angle and attach them to the wall by
welding in an effort to stop the migration of the wall so it doesn’t fall into the river, Marconi
further indicated receipt of an emergency wetlands permit from DES and spoke of how condition
surveys are done on the facilities (one was done on Fish Pier facility), and even though the
facility is old, the report received from the engineering firm did not indicate that the wall was in
eminent danger of collapse as issue was below the ground. Has been in touch with the
Governor’s office and leadership in the Senate in an effort to find funding to replace wall. Have
to assume that if 50’ of the wall failed, the remainder of the wall was constructed in the same
manner and may fail as well. Levesque asked the total estimate to replace the wall; Marconi
responded $3.2 million dollars; one of the driving factors to the cost is the need to make the
repair from a crane on a barge versus on land as well as part of the wall is within 20 of the
building and the anchor system is underneath the building presenting an engineering and
construction dilemma. Propose to drive another wall two feet outside the existing wall and go
into the existing tie backs because the report indicates that the tiebacks are in good condition.
Had been planning a few years out to do the replacement with the thought of doing a concept
plan to replace whole facility, going to the legislature and ask for funding during the next budget
season for grant money from US DOT. Marconi indicated that some of these projects are
eligible for DOT grant money. Allard asked if DPH had approximately $12 million dollars to do
work on the pier; Marconi indicated that project has not been started yet. Allard asked if that
was specific to the big pier; Marconi affirmed and stated that was a DOT grant specific to the
rehabilitation and modification of the existing main ship dock. Allard asked if those funds could
cross and Marconi indicated that the BUILD program is funded to 2022 and there may be
approximately $5 million dollars left in the program. Allard asked where the $3 million would
come from; Marconi responded that was what he asked D’ Allesandro and the Governor’s budget
director. Allard asked if there is some kind of fund available; Marconi indicated that there are
different ideas that are being weighed. Levesque asked for verification that this property is
owned by the State; Marconi affirmed. Levesque further stated that PDA is not on the hook for
this wall; Marconi again affirmed and further stated that during discussions with Senator
D’Allesandro who is the Chairman of the Finance Committee it was confirmed that the property
is owned by the State and operated by PDA - DPH.

S. Jocelyn Marine Services, Inc. — Right of Entry Renewal

Marconi indicated that Jocelyn Marine Services, Inc. requested to exercise its second and
final option to renew its Right of Entry to provide boat hauling and launching services at the
Hampton Harbor Marine Facility from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

6. Kokosing Industrial, Durocher Marine Division — Right of Entry for
use of the Market Street Terminal premises

Marconi indicated that in accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director:
Consent, Approval and Execution of License Agreements and Rights of Entry” Mr. Mullen
approved the request from Kokosing Industrial, Durocher Marine Division for storage of cable
reels and assembling of equipment in association with its Little Bay cable project at the Market
Street Terminal (555 Market Street) from August 6, 2019 through December 31, 2019. Director
Loughlin granted his consent to this request on July 31, 2019. Primarily contractor for hull

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22, 2019



20

alignments going under Little Bay, the ship’s anticipated arrival is September 37 or 4™ and it is
coming from Korea. The ship is coming in with the spools of cable on it.

7. LS Cable America Ltd. - Right of Entry for use of the Market Street
Terminal premises

Marconi indicated that in accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director:
Consent, Approval and Execution of License Agreements and Rights of Entry” Mr. Mullen
approved the request from LS Cable America Ltd. for storage at the Market Street Terminal (555
Market Street) of underground cable transmission material in association with its F-107 UNH
Project from August 19, 2019 through December 14, 2019. Director Torr granted his consent to
this request on August 15,2019. This company owns the cable associated with the Kokosing
project for laydown area to put the cable spools and transfer onto the barges as the project
progresses. Some of the cables will be loaded directly onto the barges and the remaining spools
will be placed in the laydown area.

Lastly, Marconi praised his staff for the hard work which was done while the Tall Ship
Eagle was here the beginning of August. The security for the traffic and public/pedestrian
patterns, concession tent, barricades to protect the public and vessel from intrusion were laid out
by Security Supervisor Dan Pollinger; Deputy Chief Harbormaster Grant Nichols was in charge
of overall security and coordinated with local and State police, State Police Bomb Squad, Coast
Guard, security personnel; Operations Manager Whit Anderson and Tyler Zabkar did all the
heavy lifting, moving jersey barriers around, cleaning things up; and back office stuff with Lana
and Brenda in the office area. Torr indicated that Captain Marconi was working hard as well.

XIIL. Special Events:
A. Report

Executive Director Mullen indicated that there will be three (3) races which will be held
during the month of September as indicated below.

L. September 2, 2019 - St. Charles Children’s Home Sk run,
2. September 7, 2019 - Newington School Supporters 5 mile run; and
3. September 28, 2019 - Bottomline Technologies Sk run.

XIV. New Business:
XV. Upcoming Meetings:
Board of Directors September 19, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m.

Residential Housing Committee September 19, 2019 @ TBD
All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019



21

XVI. Directors’ Comments:

Director Levesque thanked Hinchee for coming back early from her vacation to attend
the rescheduled Board meeting,

Chairman Smith appreciated all of the hard work and efforts by the PDA Board in
moving the meeting from the August 15" to August 22™ and the Board and PDA staffs’ efforts
during the non-public meeting and the months of negotiations that led up to the non-public.

XVII. Adjournment:
Director Torr moved and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board meeting,

Discussion: None., Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.
Meeting adjourned at 12:34 p.m.

XVIIL Press Questions:

There were no questions from the press who attended the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

PABOARD MINUTES\2019\8-22-19.docx

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors August 22,2019






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of Lonza Biologics, Inc.'s ("Lonza") revised conceptual plan to
convert one of the parking garages at 70/80 Corporate Drive to a central
utility building and to add four floors (total of seven) to the second
parking garage to replace the lost spaces; all in accordance with the
terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell,
P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated September 10, 2019 attached hereto.

NARESOLVES\2019\Lonza Amd to Site Plan (Parking garage to utility building and add floors to second garage).docx

LD TAKING YOU THERE

R4 DT LA W e asnrday sre
§ I A A S BN AW 0828008V O 8






NTERNATIONAL 55 Inreraaiional Drive Pocsmouin, M 02805
VELOPMENT
MEMORANDUM
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ;
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager
Date: September 10, 2019
Subject: Lonza Minor Amendment to Site Plan, 70/80 Corporate Drive

Last year, the Board approved Lonza’s concept plan for a major expansion of its facility on the parcel
at 70/80 Corporate Drive, also known as the iron parcel. The development plan received approvals
from the Portsmouth Planning Board on January 17 of this year. Recently, Lonza has submitted a
request for approval of an amendment to its site plan.

The attached letter from Lonza’s counsel explains the need for the amendment. in summary, Lonza is
seeking to change one of its two approved parking garages to a central utility building. The lost
parking spaces would be replaced by adding floors (four floors to seven) to the remaining parking
garage. While the original plan would have the parking garages built in separate phases, the amended
plan is to build the single garage in Phase 1B, making it available when the first main production
building is completed and occupied. The seven story parking garage will be approximately 85 to 90
feet high, or 15 to 20 feet below the elevation of the main buildings. There will be no change to the
footprint size or shape of any building.

As indicated in Part 407.03 of the PDA Site Review regulations, amendment requests shall be
evaluated at staff level and if deemed minor (having no or only inconsequential impact) shall not
require additional review and approval. Alternatively, staff may seek review by the Board. It is the
opinion of staff and the City’s Planning Director that this amendment can be considered minor in
terms of use and impact to the site. However, in light of the visual impact, the PDA Board should be
given the opportunity to review the revised concept.

The new phasing for the garage construction will impact the lease terms, in that Lonza will be using a
greater land area sooner than originally anticipated. Lonza has provided information on the affected
land area so that the lease terms can be adjusted accordingly.

At next week’s Board meeting, please seek approval of Lonza’s revised conceptual plan to convert
one of the parking garages to a central utility building and add floors to the second parking garage to

replace the lost spaces.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\Lonza 70.80 Minor Amendment.docx

0O TAKING YOU THERE

WoUR 55580 3Y. 010G



ONIGTING 3190010

L

i /
/ /
" tvae ¥ lunowioe o s/
i QUOGD) TEDewe €ENOY LM =
CIFTOA0NE TITHEI (TWY TIMCTRIY
30 ) AT SO Wxie
b~ ‘.V_n,ﬁ AYEEOGD 83 AVEINTY
= -

S3YIV FLO'ST = IWIOL

S3YIV FET'S = 45 FIED'BTT = € VIYY ONVT

JIdIHX3 v3dVY ANV _ SV F8G°L = 45 FESTELE = T4 VIUY ONVT

IYTHSAWYH MIN ‘HLNOWSLHOd
JNU&{& ZO‘N_H SIYIV ¥98°ZT = JS ¥555'095 = T# v3uV ANV
SOIDO10Ig YZNO1 ;

4S F9BL'6S = VIYY ONV] 3DVHYVD




ROBERT D. CIANDELLA
LIZABETH M. MACDONALD
JOHN J. RATIGAN

DENISE A, POULOS
ROBERT M. DEROSIER
CHRISTOPHER L. BOLDT

SHARON CUDDY SOMERS
La' j €rs DOUGLAS M. MANSFIELD

; 'HERINE B, MILLER
L s . /(J KATHERINE B, }
@»Jfﬂéﬂr/é} %f}’)&[;f‘ CHRISTOPHER T. HILSON
HEIDI J. BARRETT-KITCHEN

CELEBRATING OVER 30 YEARS OF SERVICE TO OUR CLIENTS JUSTIN L. PASAY
ERIC A. MAHER
AMELIA G, SRETER

BRENDAN A. O'DONNELL
August 21,2019
RETIRED
Via Email and U.S. Mail MICHAEL J. DONAHUE
CHARLES F. TUCKER
NICHOLAS R. AESCHLIMAN

M.Stowell@peasedev.org

Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager
Pease Development Authority

55 International Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re:  Request by Lonza Biologics (“Lonza™) for Approval of Minor Amendment to Approve
Site Plan

Dear Maria:

[ write on behalf of Lonza to request that you, acting in your capacity as Building
Inspector, and pursuant to the authority stated at Part 407.03 of the Site Review regulations of
the Pease Development Authority (“PDA™), approve the amendment to Lonza’s approved site
plan, as described below and in the attached plans.

The critical fact about the proposed amendment being presented here is that the
amendment does not implicate any traffic or other off site considerations. The Amendment as
proposed does not trigger population of the Lonza site with additional workers but rather
reorders elements of the approved site plan. Accordingly, we submit that this request a minor
amendment meets the standard at Part 407.03 and thus does not require full site plan review and
approval.

Immediately below we summarily describe the changes we seek by this request for minor
amendment. The enclosed plans depict those changes.

We propose to change what had been designated as proposed parking garage number | to
a Central Utility Building (“CUB”). The shell of the CUB would be constructed during Phase
IB of our amended approval and fit up of the CUB would occur in subsequent phases. The CUB
would have the same footprint as the prior proposed garage. We propose to increase the size of
the remaining proposed parking garage (previously referred to as Proposed Parking Garage #2)
from a four story garage to a 7 story garage that would accommodate all of the new parking
previously identified for the project. The Proposed Parking Garage would be built during Phase
IB.

DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC
16 Acadia Lane, P.O. Box 630, Exeter, NH 03833
111 Maplewood Avenue, Suite D, Portsmouth, NH 03801
Towle House, Unit 2, 164 NH Route 25, Meredith, NH 03253

1-800-566-0506 83 Clinton Street, Concord, NH 03301 www.dtclawyers.com



Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager
Page 2
August 21, 2019

There will be no change to impervious surface and overall storm water management
design for the full build out of the site since footprints of buildings remain the same. Gravel
Wetland #2 would be constructed during phase 1B to capture run off from the proposed garage.
There will be no change to overall traffic patterns since all employees connected to existing
Lonza operations will still be entering and exiting from the same driveway. Fundamentally, the
only change will be that these employees will be parking in two garages now instead of three.

As noted above, proposed Building 1 will be constructed as a shell and will not be
occupied during Phase 1B. The express condition of Lonza’s existing approval, that occupancy
of Building 1 will not occur until fit up is approved by subsequent site plan approval, remains the
same. Phase 1A of the approved site plan remains the same; there is no change to Phase 1 A.

The foregoing describes in summary fashion the changes to our existing site plan which
we seek to have approved by you as a minor amendment. We understand that one element of
what is described above will require a report to the PDA Board of Directors.

This concludes our request. This letter and the enclosed plans, constitute our request for
approval of a minor amendment to the Lonza site plan granted by the City of Portsmouth
Planning Board by Notice of Decision dated 18 January 2019. For your information and
convenience, [ have enclosed a copy of that notice of decision.

Thank you for your attention, please let me know if you have any questions or comments
regarding the forgoing or the enclosed.

Yours truly,
DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC

S

——
obert D. Ciandella

.

RDC/lmh
cc: Lonza Biologics
Juliet T.H. Walker, Planning Director
Lynn Marie Hinchee, Esquire
Patrick Crimmins, PE
Justin L. Pasay, Esq.
Stephanie Carty, Paralegal

SALI-LZ\Lonza Biologics\Pease\Correspondence\2019 08 21 Stowell tr Minor Amendment. final.docx



TYHOILIYREIING

6T0Z ‘6T YIAWILdIS
ONILIIN S HOLOFYIA 40 auvogd

6T0Z ‘TS ATNC ONIANI
aoIdid HINOW INO JFHL 304
1H0d3Y TVIDONVNIL 0207 Ad

ﬂf




(6997} 84
7069 {76)
182 {62)
PIG'T (8g)
TTEET {(6T]
[erad [§4d]
78 9)

6OE (9)

91/ (#€)
S67T a7

ez’ 7
881"/ )
£E£70 {Fg)
13nang AONVYIUTA

UVIA HVIA

LNIHEAD

(s,000 %)

ANTRRUND

FiE FiIN

344 gl

£z (9

[5: 74 vTL

T/TT SRLT

obT

LE 18

7T 9

6 ST

0T 7ZT

107 oy

379 979

£CH'T QLT
Faang INLDY

aLva ALy
[SXRIGETN

Ol uviA

DNIANT AOTH3d HINOW INO FHL 104

SHNQONT DIV HAA0 LAl

MOTLYIDIUSAG

(Z# 39vd)
ASMAAKT ANV (FINODNT)
DNILYHIJONON

AWOONT ONLLVUHJAD

ASNEAXT . "

(9 20%et) Oomny

Ty 208 L MAMENY
NOLLOWO U SIS0 ONT LY A
CNY DONLLDRIVIA

(92 30vd) )
SADIAUAS IWNOISSAHOU SSOT AUIATTRC TN didd AD L3SAHO0

SAIS N NOLDWYH ONY JAY ®
(@ 39¥d) SHLLTTLLO

(o5 9ve) ANLLY I SINIINGY "
CNY TVHSINED
AONVNLLNIVIA WO SANNAT ,,::,m,ﬁ,,-,,.,za .
SALLTIIDOVL ANY S2RNIATTING
(S O b JOV) G L TTINDG Quﬂ_%‘_ﬁ ,.mmm_/w_awmw_yﬁ A EIW.—HA .

ONY SADIAYAS TANNOSYd

E™

: SASVININI AQ 13S0 ‘SITLTTEOV: 40 IV.LN
SASNAXS DNEINEO T e SNSRI ONIWTL
(64 F0vd)
SANNIADI DNLLYHADO O 5E AT NIMOT
CSHANGATH ONLLYHAA:  *
SISATYNY JONVIHYA LAnand

6TO0Z ‘TE AINC

- SIASNIAdXI ANV SIANNIAIY 40O INFWALYLS dILVYATTOSNOD




o

1
3
oy}
i x’i
&
—~
oo}
o
<l
o
k!
o=t}
ﬁ’}
ol

b 2 8 v G 6 LHOAIY NIAYHANS
w1 3€ 5 £z Sk 99 UOFAYVH NOLAWYH
12 43 €e o€ eT F UOAUYH TAR
(6€) 6¢ - (59) 59 - U HSTH HINOWS.LYMO
ADNVINVA SHOD SHOD FONVINYA SATS SIS
13gang gaLIsans TLLDY amsang gaLanang ALY SISATYNY 1N
h i HULO 1R
LECOT  (Z5) £E6T 5787 U
me; ﬂ ,_”Iw. N:w, 1IN xw,_m_.w.:u TV SATHRN AN 430 R ATY Y B EETR TN TS VITPRN
ASTANYHIUAW
SEC - T TE 410D
ANNIATY
9¢¢ 6 1€ 0 NOISSIDNGD
(MO 3TV 33S)
+16 (?) 2la 0zy STIVS 1A
' (V1D 2 2138)
96+ i) i820 G617 SANNIATY 3340
, SHLLYIIOV
160°01 (£11) 1221 8011 A0 TYINSY
|\ ! sl
. by
13Inang UYA 13nang VALY , o
UVIA WVIA aiva J1va AEVA O UL S0 JA 332
ANFYUND ANZUND 01 uv3A 0L v
(5,000 $) T

6T0Z 'TE AINC
ONIANT OTd3d HLINOW INO JHL ¥OA
SANNIAIY ONILYYIHO AILVATITOSNOD



=)

7

DNIANZ aOodad H.

JAANSE ANV SIDIAYES T3NNOSYId A3iVATIOSNOD



151SsY
NIWav

VAVOYT
pig)

INVINNODOV
T10dAVd
NYW3I702

NVSNS

() NInav
W3LSAS 11

NOS¥3LIVd
ssac

INVINNODOY
YOINIS

Zaocr NOY

NTen )
(1) 3ONVNId

40 ¥OLD3NUIa
LNVLSISSY

IDNVNIS
40
yoloauia
YANNYD
AdL

d01vy3ado

LNINGIND3 1SISSY
13MNRG NIWOY
NILsNnC 29Vd
NIgOoH
W g i 2313 sissv
nzmw.vwwax NVIDI¥LOITT
LSISSVY NIWGY dOHSI8
u,_._w_u.wm_zﬁ YOSIANIANS AL
ONINVITO S3ILLITIOVY
aNvuLu3g QOOMIUIN
¥ILSYW YOAYVH E=ElS m@um_ 23dS Sdo
NOTINVH HHEI0/ NVHIIW
YAIN SLINIWI, ¥YoLviu3ido
isissy  NIA3 LNIWIAV PR NHOC
NIWGY NOLYON v
Stoang ~ ALTHAO3S HOLYUIIO
¥OLVYIdO 23dS Sd0
Aanc  UIONITIOL 1NIWdIND3 LNIWAINGI HITITW LUNY
Nva wxo HIJOMGOOM 23dS Sdo
gog YNVO HONONOGIN
1SISSY ALIHNDTS VHANYS 23dS SdO
NIWaY LD TR doLnado LHVH HTIAL
NIIHHIHL INIWJIND3 ANIWDINO3 03dS Sdo
VaNTug SNITI0D SWISNYANVL mwbwm%%.quou
HILSYH S UES a3 23dS SdO
¥OBUVH U01VUIJO INSMONLIM
e eI Ea ANSWdINDY ¥oLvyado ST NV
G ILEL NIWaVY SVLSYNV dInd3a
STOHDIN LLIHY3W
HSIVM NHoc AGVHD ANAVM e
ANVYO (V701
HIOYNVI AINVISW s
SNOLLYHIdO JINVHOIW mwuﬂmﬁ. .
LsISSY 1NViSISSY OLYYIO yoluzdo  AN3OV
z%w_..wmm ATMYIOK LNIWAIND3 dInds  QLSNyL
L e MoLsuve NNRQ
YADYNYI RS A3™OD HIDYNYIN
SNOLLYI3Y YIOVNVIW zwwh;_(_z SdO
HIDYNVI UILSYIW 33A07dlT IN2WAIND3 muuwwmuuuus me :uww Ly0du1Y
SNOLLvuggo OBUYH J3THD v13dd0od AIINOD DX MNVY4 SIONVHA M%h AOY3WOd
- NOSY3IANV LTHM NONLLVHS VANYL MIYANY
ADVYL
AINVISISSY
oy
. TLAN,O
{3i5d0) INTTIVY
A0LIIUIG
ALTHOHLAY ADOTONHDIAL 13ISNNOD
10d NOTLYWYO:NI IYH3INAD ALndag
4O HOLD3AYIG dOSNIINT 18
INOJHVH ANOHINV
oNaD
¥0173u1a ' i o
do1o3uia IvyIN3D
N tz:.mo ¥OLDIHIA IATLNDIXT 33HONIH
AECERIIE NITINW GIAva NNAT

JINVHIAN
atoNdY
3Ava
NVWIHOd
SGNNOYY
EVMIVEL]
Iava
yidns
3IsUN0d
1SISSY
1SISSY
NIWGv 1s1SSV NOAvD
- oy¥d NVAY
INIVIWAQ 09
Hi3g
v9d
WYHYIC
ININ
1dWoD
IVINS
WNONYIANS
NVH3IHS OYd vod
¥3IdNS
Ll 351N WIL 25UN0D
V3HO NOLT3
YIDYNVIW
1D3r04d
SILVI INIW
YIDYNVI HINIO
ONIYIINIONT wmum.wo
T1amolLs
oLIA3a
VIYVI LI05S




S9T°T 31
S [&3)
)
081 (o1)
058 -
1Fsang ADNVIUVA
UVYIA UVIA
INZAUND INTYAND
608 (@)
o T
69 (%)
4 (s)
571
iasang FONYIUVA
HVYIA UVHA
ANTWAUND ANFWAND
(s,000 %)
9

£6

1anang
EXR 4]

OLyv3A

d

it
=3

bl

o~

0

138ansg
4.Lva
OLUYIA

VALY
ALYA
OL AvIA

WALDY
3Lva
QL YVIA

ASvaT
LdvD 40D

AITIONL LSVYOD

ASTANVHOUIW
4709

13N

HILO
T

AN HAHILO TV

L1anv IYNYELXHE

ABDOTONHOIL
NOLLYIWHOANIT

VoAl

SAINUYITS
TYMOISSTAONA

DNIANT aOo1dad

€8
81T
00t

LADdang
AUVIA
JNSRUUND

90T

0Le

66¢
Janang

AYIA
ANSUHUND

(€3]
[§9)

(9)

(+)
(£2)
AONVIUVYA

AUYRA
JNAWRAND

gl

[

(€)

(1)

HADNYIHYA
AVIA
ANIHUND

61 St
S 3 ANVAOU
9 5
£ /
G 1 UL
a7 4 ALIDT LA
anang YOIV
FLYC anva o
QLAYAA (AR )34 PN SALLITTLRN
0T
(013 Gk LAN-HARLLO TV
9 8 ST INWL
SASNAGXS
IA ¥ HMALNAWOD
SNOLLYDINOWKWOD
& 1 { SINOMHA= L
1 at ADONVUNSNT
9t GE A
Hm9ang  VNLDY o o
1Lva ALY FALEFHLSTMINGY
OLdvYaA QLYvIA M T R

6T0Z "IE AINC
HLNOW INO IHL ¥O4

SASNIdXI ONLLVYIHO YAHLO dILVATTOSNOD



|

WLOL

0TE T WIHLO
HLNOWS.LYOd e O
z ¢ g Vi 1STUAINT

c . 40 MDD {62) () (€) (£)

DO -NNYE ASNAdX
50¢ § ANIATAOY oTE (52) 9z T ISHHALNT
139ang atva

;,_<.umE . Olrw_.qm; - = . ranang ADNVYIYVA LY
UYIA UYL 13vang aiva
ISNIIXTF LSTUTINT INTUUND  INFWNND q1vd oL oL
HYIA UYL
(s,000 $)

6107 ‘ITE AINC
ONIANZ AOITd3d HINOW INO IHL HO4
ASNIdX3 (IWODINI) ONILYYIdONON d31lvariosNod



Ge, 86E'S
BTV PECT
¥ -

641 -

144 =

- 688

- SHE

= FOTE
5 $1

> 0ST'Z
aaoigIsIe QAIOTHIS TN

OI0C TEATN LY

wiOL

3AVEL NOIFAHO-A

ANNA AYIHSTS
-NVOT ONIAOATY

ONIDAIYA
HOGUYH

ANJWADYNYIA
HOHUVH

SANN TYEINED

SHOMYH
QNY S04
40 NOISIAYICQ

MOUDSI INVYNIL
SANNS TYYANTD

ALTHOHLNY
JNAWAOTIAIC
48v3d

SINITUAINOT ANV HSTD

(s,000 %)

SH6 LG 219776
(56°9) (180'8)
v t
9T 98¢
S07'T #07'1
STH'ED S01'%9
TeL € Tee &
IGT'ST SU9GT.
GOTTE 96T
625 0e9
9/9'11 9/9'1T
T66C GOE'E
£07 911
£k £L8
15€ 0z%
$66'1 0017
5TOT 6T07,
08 NNE

TEMNC

NOILISOd 19N TYLOL

QIUDTALSTUNN

ANQZ 3AVYL NOIAYO:
DNIDAFAA HOGAYH
ANN NVOT ONIAOTASY
“H04 d3LIT LS

SL1ASSY WALIdYD NI INIWLISIANT 13N
NOILISOd 13N

140 / NOISNAd

S30dNOSIY
40 SMOTINT A33y3430

SALLIGYTTIV.LOL

(€1 39vd) SATITIEVIT L1 U3HILO
JUTHEYTT 93d0 / NOISNId L3N

SATLITIDVIT AINFHUODINON
SALLINAVIT LNIFWRAND TYL0L

SALLITIGVTT LT -NOLLYOd INZMYND
ALTHDIVA DOT ONIATOARY

FNNAAIY QINAYENN

NOLLIRALSNOD ~2T8YAVd SLNNODDY
VAV SINNODDY

SHLLITIAYIT INDIND
SALLIITGVIT

Z06 Fa
EOP'EL bl I
[PA ) [987F0
87e's 0zEs's
1809 AET9
0o%"7 G681
TEO1 VAT
6Et [SYAS
99/°6 GIE'@
87§ agg
0p8 +877
6L 6657/
6F1OC GTOE
TE N

08 NNE

g3d0 / NOISNHd
SHOUNOSHY O

SMOTALN0 Cia-Laa

SLASSVY IV LOL

(CIs-0T% $39vd) SSADOU

NI NOLIDMYISNGD
ANAWAINDA

ANY SONTCTINGA "GNV

SLASSY WALV

SLASSY QAULDILSHY VLOL

LN

SSFNAVATHDIY SENNODOY
SINTIYAINDT QNY HEVD

F1ASSY GALOTM LS

SLASSY LNZRIHND "WLOL,

S35V UIHLO

LN

~FEAVATEDSY SINAOTOY

SINSTYAINDA ANY HSYD

SLASSY INAIAND

SL4SSY

NOILISOd 13N 40 SINFWIALVYLS A3LVYdIriosNOD



9%T (X1

- S5

9% 1 +91

- 01

- PET

a3iliIwgns  vadana
INNOWY IONVIVE

(5,000 $)

61
TL0'T

LTF'T

128'2
€Lg

AL
6¥6

31v¥a oL

A3IAI303Y

(£

()

{(61)

{05)
(s¥)

FHVHS
Ydad

SQy'7
768

£00°T
8711

Ava oL

A3ANIINT

65

8EL'T
+b9'1
00s'z
€Lg

$/0'T
698

dvmy

ANVUD

65

0£8'T
neL't
008’

£68

0ET'T

597’1

1230Ud
WIOL

91-¢¢-60
8T-10-11
L1-81-50

£L1-81-S0
£1-81-60

2LV A
TYAOUdAY

NOILYLTTAOYHIY ¥3Td NIVIW Hdd
A00a0 ADuUVE - ENIFWADYTdIY TYNOLLDNAA Hdd
FUVYMIAOS ANV ALTINDAS 104 3aVHDdN Hdd

(910240 945) NOLLDONYLSNOD
ADIYNIVHQ ANV INIAWIAYC INVIIXV.L MYQ

(22 V) NOISNVAX3 ONIT NG IYNIWYAL WSd
103M0Yd AVMIXYL QUYND TYNOLLYN ATV -WSd
(19.dty) AONLS DNINNYId TYNIWYAL WSd

(09 4I¥) NOLLDNYLSNOD
/ IWAQIWEY NOILDNYLSEO WSd

(85 dI¥) NOISAAQ +E-9T AVMNNY WSd

6T0T ‘TE AINL 40 SY
SITAVAIIOIY TVINIWNUIAODUILNI 4O AUVWWNS



0t

T0£'T -

@ -

968

SI-TE-£0 ADNYHD
Ly uvaA

ADNVIVY INTUAUND 13N

(s,000 $)

SSHUDOU NI HAUOM NOLLDNULSNOD 40 AUVIWWNS

IS SRUNLTANIAKD
NI INV1d VA

QL UIISNYUL AREMAND

[Sopara
1081
a

968

51-08-90
BA 4
ADNVTIVE

(LNYUD-NON) NOTSNVAE TYNTIAMELL
ADATOUd DONDRIVA 2O- Avd
(86 dIV) NDISIA $E-9T AVMNNY

AHOAHTY HLNOWSLHOI

BRI NI e X XTI M]




FAONVNILNIVIN

NQLLVYLSINIWNQY

= (¥) (2 i & NIHDLIY ASN0OHENTD

ASANOD 4105

LUOUIVY NIAVYHANS

6T-TE-£0 IONYHD IOIANIS STUNLIANIAXT  6T-0£-00
1y HVIA NI LNV'Id HYIA 18 IWYN IDFOUA
IONVIVY INIHEND (3N oL uadsnvu ANZU¥ND ADNVIVH .i
(5,000 $)

{AaNNTINGD)

SSIUD0AUJ NI XHom NOLLONYLSNOD 40 AUVIWWNS




o

|Z¢'E Z {8) ST TCEE TYLOL
STTT T = IT PIiTT
61 N . - 51 AVHTY ¥2Td NIVIN
0z - - . 0 HYHIY AVEIHNING dd
¥ - S = t AQNLS LdADNOD didd
Tt 1 - 1 - ALTHNDAS 3aVHOIN
1201 - - = 1201 D0 ADUVE - LNIWIDV I WNOLLOINN
(Hd@) SHOMUVH ANY SLUOd 40 NOISTALA
GT-TE-L0 AONYHD DIANIE STUNLIANIJIXS 61-0€-90
v Mvax NI LNV UV v AWYN IDFCOU
mUZ<.._<m .;,_MEM_DU ._umz Q%.zmn_MZQN“,_, LNIMAOD . wv¢44<m n . - . o .i
(5,000 $) |

{AINNTLNCGD)

SSFAUD0U NI MABOM NOILINYISNOD 40 AAVYHWIWNS



bt

O. 82% ANV Yad JHL OL QIDUYHD £9% ST INIWAYA

|

m
™
™
Wi
|

'
1

€7 9TT
16 -
16 -
16 -
- 911

(1) IYIHSINYH HLNOWS.L¥40d
M3IN 40 31LvIs 40 ALD

(s,000 $)

INTWAVITI ALTTIaVIT

WHIL DNOT H0 3INaFHIs

0207 AF
NI grve

FC0T

dvaa

RASE]

"HdQ 3HL

TYOANNY 40 NOLLYDO TV °1

‘ALON

911

oy
w
~!

32
™~
(o]

ANd
LMAOWY
vioL

56

8T

NOLLYOd
WalL
DNOT

|

By
=~
el

aft

16

NOLLOd
ANTHUND

ALITIGVI
AOIS QINADIDY

%05t ©

FLON TOULNOC
NOLINTIOd
AL LYM
“HINOWS 104
S0 ALID

FATHSAWYH
MAN A0 2Lvis

WYHHOUA
YD HUIVIH
ANULLIY 1SOd
FUTHSdINYH
MIN H0 31vis

6T0Z ‘TE AINC 40 SY
SAILITIAVIT WY3L DNOT



"~

BoE%)

006°c

1¢:1112)]

887

9

6TE

N~
*
oy

58S

046

088°T

1395ang
HY3A
IWOSTH

(5,000 $)

IZT 86E]

(zot1) See

ST (€£)

6) 6T

14 o

+7) Z

(1) 67

1 8g

(6) 08

a7 90T

FONYIAYA  13900g
AVIA BTN

ANFRUND

OL AvaA

i

(i)

14

6€

i

VALY
31va
OLuvaA

FNQONT
DNTLYURdO L3N

NOLLYIOIUA3G

ASNEHAXS
ANY (FWODNT)
DNILYUIJONON

AWOONI DNILLYAIAO

dIHLO TV

NOLLOWOd
GNV DNIIIHAVIN

SADIAAIS
TYNOISSTAON

SALLIAN

AALLVALSININGY
ANV TVYINED

GONVNILNIVIA
SHLLINOYA
ANV SONIaTINg

SLIHANSE ANV
SADIANAS TINNOSH

SASNHANA
DNELVUALD

SANNINIY
DNLLVUEdO

lakiv] Pt

€£€8°L8.

T0E’S6

g
q

o
™~

44

0y
—
o]

858

£1/

135ang
HYIA
IYOSIH

Uy A
£96°€E9 £T0T
567’85 BIOT

8YL'6L 6TOT

ares

25 I

PLVE ANTNINY TN

6

11

AONVIUVA
dYAA
LNZRND

|
=4

9
-~

o~

81

0¢

0s

139ang
ALvad
OL VA

4

I
=3
i

&l

-

fow]
ft]

19

TNV
41vd
OLYVIA

AIHLO T

SANNAAIY
NOISSHINOD

ADVMOT 12N

SNV
HOZA AVd

VLN
SALLITOVA

SHNNAATYU
DNILVYILO

Loy

[T

f e
SRS PN
D anenm

toNEEYDY

LAOdATV HLNOWSLAOJ
6107 ‘TE AINC DNIANI AOTYId
HLINOW INO FHL 04 SNOLLVYIHO 40 INIWILVILS



e

(T787%) oty (67874 G

LET 3y
(Z75]) = F 4 @) IWOINT LI07 Ad
L £ b
SNLLVEIO 1IN (6.17)  sse'd ©01)  (665°S) (seR) 600T Ad
0zs
¢ e o NOLLYIDRNd3a £01 04E°'T - (£61°1) (b2} 2707 Ad
anv Aww_wwﬁw ok 718 e (z7) (g9) 6107 A4
- - - - DNLLVUILONON 7 . . - 7 0707 A
(28) c ) ‘ FWOONI ONLLYHIdO WIOL  SANNA AVERM ON3IXE U3 MO'I
b 4 91 g7 INVHD 1830 TLIdYD HSYD 13N
1S ¥ b 9 1304 -¥AHLO TV
NOLLOWOYd R _
) - - - ONY ONLLINYVIA 6LY [4 r z 0707 Ad
[ T - T SADIAYAES TYNOISSIHOUd oL ¢ £15°¢T 7 7 6107 A4
44 @ z - SALLITLLA O EVETN 31va HLNOW a10s
- o | o
8¢ ¢ - 4 ANY TH3NAD ave S UL
FONYNILINIVI STLLTDV- e . . v -
19 (@) S 5 ANV SONIQTING 88T ¥ ) (iF3
SLIFINAg ANy - - - YIHLO TV
09 (1) S 12 SIDTAYAS TINNOSHI
9 b G 6 SHIYS and
SASNIIXA LNEY
M.U r 4% : - 21
NIL#3dO 1z : I 17 SALLTIOV
o v SANNIATY
[S31 v 9T 0t DNLLYUHAQ 39and IONVIIVA 139ang VNIV
3 UYIA YVIA 3iva iva SHONIASY
139ang  IONVIMYA  (aoang TvRLOw TWOST ANFHUND OLYUVIA  OLuvIA DNLLVYIAO
wV3IA UVaA 3lva 3iva oL s S S e o 2

WOSTd LNIHHND Ol ¥vax dY3IA

(5,000 $)

LHOdYIV NIAVYHIS
6T0Z ‘TE€ AINC HSNIANI AOTY3d
HINOW 3INO 3H1 Y04 SNOLLYH3IdO 40 INJWILVYIS



€01

8t

9LE

566'8

130ang
AVIA

TWOSIH

(s,000 $)

{68) 090"% TL6

1 £9 9

(g8s) £ZT'T SEO'T

(%) 8 <

- 7 v

(0£) 13 1

[543 997’7 TEOT

AONVINVA 139009 WLV
YYIA 3iva aLvg

ANIRIND

OL dvax OL ¥v3A

AWQINT
DNILYUAGO JaN

NOTLYIOIUdAQ

ASNII X
ANY (THWODNT)
DNLLYUIAONON

ANOIMI
ONTLVYHAIO

YIAHLO T

NOILOWOMA
ONY DONLLIMUVIA

SHOIAMES
IYNOISSIHOUd

SALLTILLN

JALLVHISINIWAY
CUNY IVHINID

ADNYNLLNIYIAL
SALLTIOVA
GNY SONITTING

S1IHANIE ANy

SAJIAUAS TANNOSUE

SASNIAXT
OHNLLVUILO

SANNIATY
DNILYYIAdO

lm LS 3.1 P 1%
L0
“ i
(a4 WIOL
¢ HelC
b 109
5 NEIAVHAMNS
041 WS
8¢ 180d30wyL
BYOT HMX QLA At

TRO'E 5107 A4 e
QSH'C 9107 AL

TAE'E 2700 Ad | e
667'E QTOT Ad
097'C 6107 AL

HAMM IWLOL

LINY SSINISTIR AH SISATVNY NOLLIWNSNOD HAA

H

5669

£91

T4

1398ang
UV
LLANE]

(wzr)

FONVIYVA
HYIA
ANIHAND)

139ang
ALva
Q4 AYIA

LHOdaaviL
6T0Z ‘TE AINC DONIANI AOTYId

o7
=t

000'T

TNV
ERAZ

OL AUV

HAHLO M
SALLIDV:
A0 AN

SANNIATY
DNLLYUAAO

HLNOW 3NO FHL JOd4 SNOLLY¥3dO 40 AINANWILYILS




|

|

2
D

9t [743

Yd3d0
3SENOD

A3g/
aood

1€

dOHS
O¥d

FWOINI
DONLLYMIJ0
(NOILVIDZYdaa

DNIGNTOX3)
SIASNALXH
ONILYHTIJO

SANNIATY
ONILYYIJO

SISAIVNY
LINMA SSEINISNH

15¢

139and
UYIA

vosH

91
ot

€1

JONVIAVA

(=
o)

o

€

)
g
ol

Fal]

€

39ang

UY3IA 3Lva

LNFHAND

(s.000 $)

I

QL UVIA

HINOW INO JHL 404 SN

11€

9t

Ny
41vd

0L AvaA

43HI0 ONY
ASTANVHDUIW

SNOSSI
HOLYINWIS
SAIHSUIAIWIW
S334 4709
SANNIATY 334

SINNIAIY
NOISS3INCD

SANNIAIY

DNILLVN3dO

VA4

LT
£91

€1¢

96E7C

1329ang
UYIA
IOSIH

i
]

§89)

(€)

(1)

TT

87

P

ADNYIUVYA
A

ANTRRUND

o
wy

#0T

09e

1anang
ALva

OL uvaA

REF
ALY
v

OL¥vaA

HAWODNI
SNILVYI4O L3N

NOILYIDZHARA
ASKHdXI

anv (INODNT)
BNLLYUISONON

FWOINT ONTLYHR40

AIHLO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ONY ONLEDINYIN

SADIAYAS
TYNOISSAH0Hd
SALLINLN

FALLYYLSINIWAY
ANV TPHINIO

HONNZLNIVIA
SALLTDVL
aNV SONIGTINE

SLIAINAS ONY
SEDIAYAS TANNOS A

SASNAIXT
SNILYIIAO

S3INNIATY
HNILYHIAO

3SANOD 47109
‘TE€ AINC DNIANI AOTY3d

OILVY3dO 40 INIWILVLS



€108 WIOL

8TH'07 915°/1 S334 WOOY ANV G004 21577 UIFRWAWNON TR LR g m n =
. , 4 969'8 YA f _ m m _
S gt SANOVEN NOSVES -SANNOY RT0T
£58'77 S65°1T AVl INTWYNENOL - e
) ) . BFE DL WIO0L o . o .
8099 #98°G 0b-21 SdNOYD 0Z0°E7 UFFWINNON f ST
aifa UIE I T
aLA aia SNOLLONNA o

NOSYHS ~-SANN0oY 6T0C

0TOC Ad 6107 A4 JISUNOD /a9n1D
EIHALES I e POTELT W (MOSYIS) SANNOY HAAWIWNON / MIHWIN 6TOE
= o anne ,
- 98"z anne ‘e 0¢ 33 SAYA NIV
— i - 627 AV
) - A- 4 - M.‘~ o~ . - ‘ = ﬂ A
\ . oT6'E —_ JTETS 1208 6WR0E 3AYId SONNOY
- 9T9'bET Mady L
s - £06'9T HOUYI NOSYHRS alA LA
5 760°STT HOUYI
, 165'57 AVARIEE
- 782101 AAYNHEI )
, 867 AUVANYE ,_
- TZ6'201 ANVANYE “ .
\ T ¥3FWADAA i ,
- £65°0T1 NAEWEDAT I ] S —
, zieen JAWIAON m
- 1668 UIAWIAON crest HHANIAO m
- - OI J b
- 95T'bET HIIOLD0 Getey RO 2 ”
ey / UAGWILIAS
- 116981 MAQWALATS 247 2 LB |
- bEE'TTT 1SNOnY iz 2001
295717 § 102807 $ ATNe L S
savs o N SANNAAIY
0202 Ad 6T0T Ad SS0uD geoe 1 SrOT A solvifnrs (NOSV3S) QFAY T 410D A0 SANNON
97 1110
. 1 .
6T0CT ‘'TEC AINL 40O SY
21 ViIVA DNDRIVINHONIG 3SANOD 4109 AN



o . . || IWODNI [(iT272) {TE) 0€ 3 HWOONT A0 1IN
£33} qT - (§3) TE 6% ONLLYYIHO ©
509 1 ng 15 NOLLYIDNUAAA
(NOLLYIDI¥d3a
ONIANTIDXI)
ASNHdXH
(s b 1€ S 69 o S ANV (IWOONI)
- ONILVYUIIONON
SANNIATY
- 67 1€ v 00T 5z ONLLY23d0 6t FNOINI ONLLIVHIALO
SISATYNY T (9] gee 06T
NIWQvY DYNVIN 133318 UAId HSY yogyvH HOYYUYH AIND
HOSHYH  1a)uvi HLNOWS.LH0d NOLdPIVH ETeY SSANISNE 66/, () 68 5] 130 - MAHLO MY
e o NELLOWON
5577 ®9) i3 BET WLIOL ¢ i i i ANY ONLLINYIW
1 1 6 !
80 e £ UIHLO TV RIS
058 (z1) €1 TIT SIVS 13N4 b @ z - TYNOISSHOUd
S6T'T {55) T 95 66 () 8 & SALLLLN
055 GF) g5 T N0 / J4YHM JALLYY LSINIWGY
LLT 5 g1 0T ANY TWHENED
591 *1) bT - SNOLLYY1SIDY
STT 5 1z oz ONINUVY IDNYNILNIVIN (INY
S17 (9) 2T T1 DV QNY SONIQTING
S9¢ 1) o€ 67 $334 ONIHOOW
S1I4aN38 ANy
ANNIAZY 33 560'1 (1) 76 as SEDIAUAS TANNOS Y
ANNIAZY R
€ T z £ NOISSIDNOD SASNAXA
SNILYYIAO
SW.LNTY
61+ 1 5€ ot ALTIDVS ) _ e e SANNANTY
GI57%T %9) £oe GET DNTLVHIAO
RO onvmva 3oane wniow SANNIAIY .
UYAA AVIA I1va 31va OL DNIINUZAO 139ang HONVRIVA  1E9and WNLDY
TYOSI AINTHRIND OL AvaA vaA AvIA UVIA ALvd aLva
AR St RS e o WIS ANERRIOD OLYUVEA QL uvIA E
(s.000 %)

(QFLO14LSTUNM) TUIHSAIWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLINY L10d

6T0T ‘'TE AINC DNIANI AOTYId
61 HLNOW INO FHL 304 SNOLLYY3dO 40 INIWILVILS



2l

01

STT

132ang
AYIA
RLASE!

(5,000 $)

LNFSUND

[§¥49) (€3) FZT)

(& 9 8

(61T) £ (9t1)

¥T T 57T

b1 T S71

5 b B

JONVIIYA Lanang WNLOY
UYIA Ava Jiva

OLUVIA Ol dv3aA

(GILO1ALSTY) FUTHSAWYH MAN 40 ALTHOHLNY
6T0Z 'T€ AINC DNIANT AOTY3d

FWOONT
ONILLYUILO 13N

NOILVYIDIUJIA

ASNAINH
ANV (HINODNI)
HNILYHIIONON

AWODINE
HNILYUIAdO

YFHLO TV

NOLLOWO
ONY ONILERIVIA

SHOIAYAS
TWNOISSAAOM
SALLINLN

JALLYYLSININAY
NV TYHINED

FONVYNILLNIVIA
SALLIIDYA
ANV SONIAIING

SLIHIN3g aNy
SADIAAIS TINNOSHH

SASNAIXT
ONIIVAILD

SANNAATY
ONTLVUHAC

EBNIDAUA
AOHUVYH

- €%}

c (n

ot [§3)

- (1

\. -

m -

ot -

139ang AONVIRIVA

VI yvaA
WOSL

ANZRIMD

3} E

49 -

.

I

1anang WALV
31va ALva

OLYVAA 0L dvas

ANODIME
DNILYRHGO LIN

NOILYIOTUd3IA
ASNIeA X

UNY (FINOINL)
BNILYHIAAONMON

HOOMY
BNLLYUAGO

MIHLO TV

NOTLOWOMd
GNY ONLLEMUVIN

SHMAUAS
WNOISSHHOU

SHLLTILLN

AALLVHLSINTINGY
QONY T REINAS

FONYNDLNIVIW
SALLITOV
CINY SONTATING

SLLEINGR ANY
SHOTAMES T3NNOSH A

SASNAIXR
DNLLYHHAO

SANMIAATY
DNLLYAHAO

SANQGZ 3AavdL
NBIF

1A40d

HLNOW INO JHL Y04 SNOLLVYIdO 40 LNIWILVYLS



5¥3 =

faui}
i

FWODNT
'SANNZ AFAALSINDIS SIANTIN () BNLLYYIAO 13N
NOLLYIDHYdHQ
ASNIdX3
ANY (INODNT)
_ | () % -aLv - ; . . ONLLYUIIONON
<58 6'e8 NOLLVZITILN oT1 - T T AWOINI DNLLYHIAO
WLIdYD o i )
8z = € 3
- . - - YIHLO TV
60CT 80CT
NOLLOWOWd
0c0°T 0T - - - ANV ONLLINAWI
L7 - £ £ SHDIAYAS TYNOISSIAON
698 958 WY3L ONOT N
o1 951 ANSYIND ’ ’ i i SALLTILN
BNIGNVISING IALLVULSINIWAY
BNIGNYISING )
Svon 1 - - - ANY TYIANHD
_ _ IINYNILNIVIN
641 %1 SALLTIDVA
SaNN - = - - ANY SONITTNG
- - aayv3Ls3INdas SLIIINGE NV
6.1 961 SANNY TYHINED - - - - SADTAUIS TANNOSHIA
SIONVIVE HETD SASNHAX3
- BNLLYY3dO
6102-1€-£0 6102-0£-90
LVEIDNVIVE LV 3ONVIVE SANNIAIY
. o T _ b B b = BNILYHAJO
NOLIVITIONOD3Y ONN3 NVOT DNIATOATS - aNNd NYO'1
P
13sang FONVIIVA 139ang WNLOY ONIATOASY
AVIA UVEIA a1va Alva
WISL INERIEIND OLUVIA (L WVAA

(s,000 %)

(@aNNILNOD)

(QL0141534) FYTHSAWYH MAN 40 ALTHOHLNY LJ0d

6T0T "TE AINC ODNIANI AOTYId
HLNOW 3INO IHL 404 SNOLLYY3dO 40 ININWILVIS






SLHOBLAY 118312490 1avie

mﬂom\ﬂxmmzmkmm =<
ONILIIW S, HOLDTHUIA 40 QUYOg |

020C ‘T€ AV

ONIAN3 dOId¥3d HLNOW 3NIN
dHL 404 SNOILD3IC0Ud MOTd HSYD




0vS'9 70¢°Z
avioL %
(40 b1 Q3LvN9IS3A vad
‘ ' £€8C'9)
959 88C°, Q3101 LSTANN Vad
BT0Z-05-90 BT0Z-TE-80 0£9°81
1V JONVIVE 1V 3ONVIVE SIONVIVE dNNd TVLOL z
911
1830 dQ) w——ttomme 1630 ANV =g HSYD QIUOIUISIUNN memmpmmne
ve0's
AV Udv HYW 834 NVl J3a AON 100 d3s 7
j A _ - . 2 . 0 O@N N
0o0T'T $40 :
‘w 1830 galo3roud w O.ﬁm~w
7 T ﬁ.l[ — I ;w ODO‘N
et p ooo's BETT
P ZeT
SRR S . OOO w M
g €8
e e T —— “ coo‘m mNO~ﬁ
S3IDONVIVE 1930 ANV HSVYD A31D03C0ud ,
* SWYAULS INNIATY 130dIAVL ONIOONO (b LU
U0 ANV SWIVID NOLLYOLLTT IVILINILOC (€ '1Sv)a404 ,
INIWISYNGWITY ANV THNLIANIXT TVLIdvD) FHL 40 82T
AJVHNDDV (2 NOISNVAX3 TVNIWYIL WSd JHL 40 IAISNTONI ,
SQUVYMY INVED JUVLS / Tvy¥3034 40 LdIE03Y (T 3anONI §¢S1
SNOTLDICOUd FINLAY QYVMOL SILLIATLISNIS INIHIND c6v's
"SINIWIYINOTY TVLIdYD ONDRIOM ¥O ANY STUNLIANIdXE
WAIdVD G3LV13Y INVID-NON G31D3[04ud IDNVYNIH OL MNVE
INIAINQYd FHL HLIM SILLIDYS LIA3¥D S, LT 370010 0L I
Q33N FHL 3LVdIDILNY SI0A ¥ad IHL TWIL SIHL 1V 88T°L
NOISSNOSIa LNNOWY

JONVIVA ANNd ONISOTO

MOTd HSVD 13N

LINIWIAULLIY 1SOd -HN 40 31VLS
AINIWINLLIY 1830 WH3L ONOT
(t# J9Vd 335) INVYD -STUNLIANIX3 TVLIdVD
(£#-S# 539V 335) INVED NON -STUNLIANIAXT TVLIdVO
SASNIdX3 ONILYY3IdO
SANNd 40 s3sn

SINNIATY T3NS ANV YVONVH LE0dYIV NIAVHAAS
SANNIAIY NOISSIONOD ANV 334 ISYN0D 4109
ONDIYVd ANV S33d 3DVMOT 13Nd 'S3SVIT -LI0dUIV WSd
13N -ONIDNVNIH 3NvVE TVNY3LX3
13N -(d0D) 334 3DIAYAS TVAIDINNW
(8# 3oVd 335) SAUVMY LNVID
SINVNIL 1Od3avilL
SANNd 40 SADUNOS
JONVIVAE ANNd ONINIdO

(s,000 $)

(5,000 $)

020T ‘TE AV OL 6T0T ‘T ¥3dW3.Ld3S

(SHOFYVH ANV SL¥O0d 40 NOISINIA ONIANTIXT) MAIANHIANO AAVYININNS MOT1d HSYD

ALTJOHINY INIWNdOT3IAIQ 3SVId



S00°T S00'T GPET 86T 88¢€7C 164°¢C 8v0'v 8€9°9 6v8'9 TLEL FONVIVE ANN4 DNISO1D

(e82'9) (#£) (££9) (s0v) (sow) (¢sT't)  (065°2) (112) (zes) £8 MOTd HSVD L3N
0¢00¢ ¢L0°E TEGC GG8T SI8T I3 ak4 6EL°E 199'T 88/'T SHT'T
STT = - = N 9TT E = = s AINIWIALLIY 1930 WYL ONO1T

- - - - - - ANIWIALLIY 1SOd -HN 4O 31VIS

(b# 39Vd 335)

Z4VES S80'T 0L7 1153 Sog S0L 1453 bS €S 8T G3LY13Y INVID - W1IdVD
0SE’T - - - - - 0SE'T - - - 334 301AY3S VAIDINNW
(£#-5# STOVd 335)
0zz'L TET'T 9pb'T 0zL 01L 0LL 0SZ YA 598 042 LNVIONON -TVLIdVD
01€’s 558 16 58 008 0S8 TAN 050’7 08 0S8 S3SNIdX3 ONLLYYIO
SANN4 40 3sn

LELET 82/C 8681 6hbT [4378% P8TT 6vT'T 0SpT SEC’T TECT
001’1 oot't - S - - > ) S 5 L3N -ONIDNVYNIH TYNYZLXT
ZeT ST b1 v1 ! bT b1 St 91 91 LYOdYIV NIAVHANS
0S¢ 8¢ 43 o¢ o€ o€ o€ T4 14 0¢ WSd -5334 39YMOTd 13N
STS'T 062 L0L (1724 801 0¢ - 0€T - - (B 30vd 335) SQUYMY LNVHD
0zy 0s Sp S 0S Sb Sh 0s Sy Sy 1¥0d¥IY HLNOWSLYOd
ss€ o o Sy Sp o¥ o s¢ ¢ 13 WSd -ONDIVd 404 AVd
se8 00T S8 0L 59 59 0S 00T 0ST 0ST 354N02 4109
§29't SLg 052 0S¢ SL€ 052 0SZ SLE 0SZ 0SZ 334 3DIAY3S WAIDINNW
S6¥'9 0€L SzL SzL su 0zL 0z 0eL S1L S1L SINVN3L 1¥0d3IavyL
SANNd 40 S32YNOS
88T'Z G6VET TBET §IET  T6lT 8P0F B8£99 6V8'9 TIeZ 88TZ JONVIVE ANN4 DNINIJO

VIOl AV ddv VN g3d NvL 33d AON 3o d3s

(5,000 $)

ALTYOHINY INIWdOTIAIQ ISYad



IVAQUdAY Q¥V08 ONIGNId =+
*3LON

l
|

vco’e S80°1 041 01¢ S0€ S0L 1283 S €5 8¢ TviolL

S¥¢ = o = S S 4 4 £ [4 (£ 9495) ADVYNIVYA ANV INVIIXVL
LAOAUIV NIAVHANS .
b1 . = ob1 - - S = = = (59 dIv) INIWITYOV ITaVSUNAWIZY
5091 S8/ 0t 0z §ST §SS [*1% (14 e = NOLLONYLSNODIY bE-9T AVMNNY
bET - - S = = 23 T4 0§ 54 (8S dIV) NDIS3A bE-9T AVMNNY

(W9'T$ -29 dIV) NOILDONYLSNOD
0ST 0ST S - = = - = S = ANV NDISIA NOISNYAXT TWNIWYIL

(W0'2$ -99 dIV) NOLLONYISNOD
0s£ 0sT 0ST 0ST 0ST 0ST = - = - ANV NOIS3IA NOISNYAX3 TYNIWYIL

JHOdAIV HLNOWSLYOd

INTWISTINTWITY INVHD

Tviol AV AUdV 4K

2
|
|
|
|
|

[
4
<
™
O
)
[al
>
4
O
o
v]
12

(s,000 $)

(SHOGYVH ANV S140d 40 NOISINIQ FHL ONIANTOXT) mmm :-—-Hn— z m mxm |.—<|—|HQ<U
ALTIOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIA 3SVad



IVAQYddY QY09 ONIANId =+
‘310N

L)
N
|
'
Lo
N
"
"
1l
&
N
i
)|
"
1]

Ov - - - - - 0¢ 0z - - *x 4007 1SISOTO dOW WOOUHLYE S,NIWOM

0T - - - - - - 01 - - +x NV38 QNV 1S0d -30N3- TANIA

SZ - SL - - - - - - - +xdIMOW HONOY AVMYIV4
ISUNOD 4109

ov ot = : : ST 3 : : ot

S - - - - - S - - - +x TYVMIS0S INTFWIDVYNYIN ALHIJOUd

+x SNOLLYDINNWWODITAL / SHIAY3S
S€ ot - - - ST - - - 071 / TUVMIL0S / SHILINRId / S¥ILNdWOD

NOILVUISININGY

Rl
&
a
o
[N
[}
[N
-
L !
|
1!
1

0s S¢ S¢ - - - - - - - +x DNIQTING TYNIWYIL ONIJOOYIY
0¢ - - - - - ST S - - *% QYYD 11IQ3UD WILSAS 13nd
LAOJdUIY NIAVHANS

|
|

<
=
ud
5
<
=
-4
o
<
2
<
b
H
L
[T
2
<
n
3
w
[a]
g
Z
g
Ol
&
i)
[

(5,000 $) {(@anNILNOD)

(s¥oayvy ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISINIQ FHL ONIGNTOX3) mmz :-—-HQ Z mmxm I—<|—|HQ<U
ALTYOHLINY INIWAOTIAIAQ ISYId



IWAQUddY QuvO8d ONIQNId »*
310N

$8L°9 990'T 9ZET 0L 00L 00/ 00L <18 0ES8 08T
1

01 - - S - - - - o) = *x 3AVIDIN NOLLDINNOD Dva

0z & - - - - - S 0¢ - +x ONLLHOIT 437 IWNIWYIL

ok

ST = - - e - S S T4 S VIV JOVOHOVE -ONIHOO0 T4 TYNIWYIL

00T = 00T - - = - S e = + SNE NOLLVLIOJSNYYL ANNOYD

L4 S - - - - - - 4 - ONINUVd YO AVd

T4 S S - e - - S ST - NOISIA NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL

#09'9 9901 977’1 00/ 00/ 00/ 004 41 0SL 0S¢ NOISNVdX3 TYNIWY3L

LHOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd

(Q3NNILNOD)

INTWISUNGWITY INVIONON

viol AVIN Ydv IV 4§34 NVC 53d AON o) d3s

(s.000 $) :(@anNILNOD)

(SHOFHVH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISINIA FHL ONIAN1Ix3) wmﬂ— :-—-Hn Z mn—xm l—<|—..Hm<U
ALTIYOHLNVY INIWdOTIAIQ ISVId



TYAOYddV Qu¥vOa ONIANAd s+
‘310N

0Tz CET'T ST o0zZ 0T 0Lz 0sZ LSS 598 07T IVL0L
L ]
.QN. = > = = z = ﬂ =
ST - = - 94 e *x INGWAINDI NO aav ¥0.LDvyL
St - - - = s INTWADVIAIY (3374 IDIHIA
IONVNILNIVIN
O¢T 0¢ ['74 0c [1)}4 [}4
06 01 0T 01 01 0T wx INFWLVIYL YILVMWAOLS
0b 02 0T 0T x4 ONIMOLINOW DId:vd.L.
Ld0d3avil
INIWISTINAWIZY
INVEONON
Jviol AVA Udv gV g3d NVT 23a AON Do d3s
(Sdls) (@anN1iNOD)

(SHOFYVH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIGNT1IX3) mmm :-—IHQ z mﬂ—xm |.—<-—..H& <U
ALTHOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIAQ ISY3Id



qeST 06¢ Z0Z 0/¢ 80T 0¢ = 0ET - B TvioL
0cT 0€ T = 80T = = 0/ = = (£-985) 3DYNIVIA ANY LNIWIAV AVMIXYL
LIOdYIV NIAVHIIS
(59 dIv)
S¢IT S = T4 = . = = = = LNIWIFUOV T1aVSUNGWITY bE-9T AVMNNY
589 SCT 094 - - - - - = = NOLLOMYLSNODIY $E€-9T AVAMNNY
(85 dIv)
06 - - 0T = 0z = 09 - S NOISIA +€-9T AVMNNY

(W0'z$ -99 dIv)

NOILLONALSNQD
- - - - - ANV NDIS3d NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL

(W9'1$ -29 dIv)

NOLLDMYLSNOD
Sob GET GET GET = = e = S = ANV NOISAQA NOISNVdX3 TYNIWYIL
LIOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd
AVIOL AV Udv Idvin g33 NVL 33a AON 0o d3s
(5,000 $)

(SYOFHVH GNV SLHOd 40 NOISINIG FHL ONIANTIX3) maﬂ—<g< |—|Z§G ..—umHmumm
ALTYOHLNVY LN3IWdO13A3A ISVad



ey 06°0
_ 001
L ooz
L 05T
00°€E

e i e a2t i i s Om.m

" 00

EIRL]

FIINVUVND
31VIS IHL
AYYUVD LON s30d

WNWINIW ON

SLNIOd SISvd
0SZ + (QISSV1D)

Y3HLO

NMOamvia
40 3ZIS WNWINIW

9TH4 HLNOW aINO ILVY 1STYIINI
dN=3EVIW + 31V ISTEIINI (OISSV10) 9TH HINOW 3NO SHL ONIGNTUL ﬁ
*SAIIN TVLIdVD
SNIIYOM ANV
SINIWIACYUAWI
. i TVLIdVD ANNd OL 350duNnd
05’y 05’y IOVYAAVY
Q3LHOIEM
S — TTOT-TE-TT 31Va WYIL
STT oFT Auates
HLNOWSLY0d
0S 020Z-1€-10 91T 911 40 ALD 000°E ATLNENY :ﬂmﬁﬂb«
(o) MNve
JIGVI¥VA ¢C0T-1€-C1 S = ANJQIAOYd IHL ALITIOVA
Iva 6T0C-0£-90 GIOZ-TE-S0 ooo'st bt E
% 3LVY el > SISXIVNV 1g3d
ISTUIINI  ALTINLIVI v ONIGNVLSING
IDNVIVY IONVIVE ANVE (OoTy) 11g3uD
AIN3AIAOYd HL 40 ¥31131 OSNIATOAIY
(5,000 $)

SISATVNY 193d SNIANVLSINO ANV SALLITIOVH LIg3AD
ALTHOHLNY LNIWdO13IA3Q 3SVId



|
|

[ v —
6Z (4 o57%
v v aNOZ 3avaL NOIFHOS
96T LT12 ANNd NVOT SNIAIOATY mmh
6/E $0C ONISAIHYA YOFUVH 7707
SANNS A31DTY1STY i
600°1T 90T SANN4 GILOTULSTUNN .
6T0Z-0€-90 6I-16-80
1V 3ONVIVE LV 3DNVIVE SIDNVIVE ANN4 TV.LOL 09¢
z6€
AV Udv ) B 833 ) HV( ) J3a ) AON ) 120 ) d3s i
. .i.llllllﬂ|.l e i = et a1 A 8 2 0 4 e e e ot 00§
A —— . -y
___ _DLrsSHSYD © 006
QERLITHLSTENN §
S = Yot @
I - - e e e y 00e'T W ﬂlﬂ
SIONVIVE HSYD Q3 LOTHLSTUNN AILOICOUd sL
ALTHIGVIT WY3L ONOT "A3NIWYIL3A 38 OL 134 SYH ‘(NISVE s6
ONINYNL YIARY VNOV.LVISId) V-N4-5Z 8H HLIM A3LVIDOS Ge7
31V L1STYIINT ANV AOTMId NOLLVZLLIMOWY NVO1 257
"d31d HSId HLNOWSLYOd L
-NOILLVLIIEVHIY ANV NOILYOLLSIANI Qvarding cas
“JWLLYIAO 3IA0TdWI
40 1 w_o_zm{._.zou QINNLINOD (+ ANV NO W/SNOD
12N (€ 'SWIVID NOLLYSNIdWOD SHINYOM (2 ‘SaNM4
ADNVNILNIVIW ¥3Id ONY ONIDGING HOGUYH 40 I5N ANY 97T
1SV23¥04 JUNLIANIdX3 TVLIdYD 0 ADVRNIDY (T 3ANTONI
SNOLLO3[0¥d IUNLNA QYYMOL SILLIALLISNIS LNIHEND i

NOISSNOSIa

IDNVIVE dNNd DNISOTD

MOTd HSVD 13N

ANIWIALLTY 1SOd -HN 40 31VIS

YIHLO NV STYNLIANIIX3 TVLIdYD

LNIWIINO0YUd 13N4

S3ASNIdX3 ONLLVYIHO

SLI4INIE ANV SADIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANNd 40 s3sn

3OVAYVHM / SNOLLYYLSIOTY
SNOISS3IONOD ANV S33d ONIIUYd
$334 ONIIOOW
S3IvS 13N
STVANIY ALTTIOV4

SANN4 40 S32YNOS

JONVIVE ANNd SNINIdO

(5,000 %)

()8

(5,000 $)

(sann GILIOTHLISTY ONIANTIXT) gmH >~—m >O >¢<EE:M BOI—E —l—m<u
SYOGUVH ANV SLH0d 40 NOISIAIAQ



v 0% 0Fs 65 008 08Z (74 8F6 ST0T TZ0T JONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD

(c62) (02) (+5) (902) 0c S€ (c02) (£9) (£s) (161) MOTd HSVYD 13N
Zgo'T V6T BT TiE 06T 08T g§6¢ T 761 5Tt

- - - - - - ANIWIULITY 1SOd -HN dO 3LVIS

o€ 01 = S 01 = = o1 S - YIHLO ANV SUNLIANIXT W.LIdVD
(113 = 01 = c 01 c = 1) - SADIAYIS TYNOISSIHONd
SOT 01 o1 ot ST 0T 0ot o1 ST ST S3LLIIOVL4 ANV SONIQIING
Tt 14" £t 14" 14 14" €1 45 €1 4} FALLVHLSINIWGY QNY IV4INID
9€T ST 91 LT 9T 91 ST ST 14! 4 SILLN
09¢ 0¢ 0c S¢ 0¢ 0€ 0¢ 0g St 0€ LNIWIINOOYd 13N4
SSET S1T 011 %) 74 SOt 001 ove S6 00T St SLIJ43N38 NV SADIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANNd 40 3Sn
474 ¥ S¢T %07 0T¢ [5¥4 56 50T 0vT 744
SET - - ST (174} 001 - - - - S334 ONIYOOW
0T 01 - - - - - - - - S3NNIAFY NOISSIONOD
SL = 14 S = ST = = ¢ - JOVRIVHM / SNOLLVYLSIONY
S8 0¢ 01 - - - - 01 0¢ 5¢ S334 ONDIYVd
1414 6¢C S¢ S¢ 174 S¢ 0¢ 0€ o€ S€ SAVS 13nd
<S89 S9 59 <9 S9 59 59 S9 S9 S9 SIVLINIY ALTIIOVH
SANN4d 40 S32ANOS
€9C°T ors 765 008 08Z SvZ 8b6 ST0'T 0T €9TT FONVIVYE ANN4 DNINIHO
IVIOL AT ddv UVl g33 NV J3a AON 5o d3s
/
(s.000 $)

SANNL @3LOTYLSTANN -MOTd HSYD 40 INIWILVIS
SYOFUVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIG



|

(4%

69T 69T 01¢ L6T 96T [&4 (¥4 4 0T 6T Y44 ADNVIVE ANNd ONISOTD
(sg) (1%) €1 I (82) I 61 1) (ce) 44 MOTd HSVD L3N
91 %S E T 8 Z - ¥ 03 Z
0ST 0s S = 0s S S S 0s S (0082) -¥3H1O TV
- - - - - - - - - - S3DIAYAS TYNOISSII0Ud
- S 5 = . = S 5 - - SILLIILN
9 4 - e [4 = e z = & JALLVYLSINIWGY GNV TW¥INTD
o1 [4 S [4 S 14 - 4 o 4 SILLITIOVH ANV SONIQTING
S S S S - - - - = = SLI4INIG ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANN4 40 asn
TET T [ € |74 [ [ T 8T 4
- - - - - - - - - - ONIANNZ INVYD
1€ € € £ i € ¥ 14 € ¥ $334 39YMOTd 13n4
(1] 01 = g 01 s S 0T = = SNOLLVYLSIDIY
0L - 01 S 01 = ST - QT 0¢ S$334 39VSn ¥3ld
SANN4d 40 $32YNOTS
$0C 0T¢ 61 96T i 444 (44 +0¢ 6T T44 $0¢ JONVIVE ANNd DNINIAJO-
Iviol AV Udv v a3d NVE 33a AON 100 d3s
— (@3LO1¥153¥)

dNNd ONIDAIAUA YOHAVH -MOTd HSYD 40 INIFWILVIS
SHOGUVH ANV SLi0d 10 NOISIAIA



8 pA:] 96 98 9z 97T 99T €ST TPT 0€C JFDONVIVE ANNd ODNISOTD

(oeT) (6 01 01 (oo1) 01 €1 4 (68) €1 MO’1d HSVYD 13N

092 (44 v 4 513 ¥ 4 [ 50T 4

- - - - - - - YIHLO T
Te z 4 € € 4 z £ € [4 S3DIANIS IYNOISSIH0Yd
= S - S S = s - i > SALLIILIN
9 > z ) = z . = z - IALLVNISINIWGY ANV TVH3NZD

- S3ALLITIDV4 ANV SONIAIING
- - - - - - - S1I43N38 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSYId
[4x4 74 - - [48! - - - 001 - d3aNsSI SNYO1 MaN
SANNd 40 3sn

|
|

¥+ ©
‘-ll

1—l|

v—lc

v—'(
|

ONVIVE ANNA -3WODNT 1SIYILNI

ve z z z £ £ £ £ € £ SNVOT-3WOINI LSFUZLNI

Z0T 11 11 1T 1T 11 11 4 43 Z1 SLINIWAVAIY NYOT
SANN4 40 $3D5UNO0S

V44 96 98 9z 971 99T €8T TPT (11344 VA ¥4 FONVIVE ANNd ONINIdO

<
=
O
=
>
g
b-X
[ 4
o,
<
-4
<|
=
Bl
[T
[T
g
<
"l
3
Lt
[a]
>
g
Z
g
8
L
(5]

€T

(5,000 $) \ QN-N.U.N. th.m.m Q\
ANN4 NVO1 DSNIATOAIY -MOT4 HSVD 40 IN3JW3aL1vis

SYOAVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIQ



=
2
e}
9
g
g
s
;
ot
<

FONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD

9 z () - - (@ - 0T 4] - MOTd HSVD 13N

@. - M z z .N = iy .N.. z

- = - - - - - - - - ¥IHLO TV
- - - - - = s - - - SIDIAYTS TYNOISSIHOUd
- - - - - = - - - - SILLILLN
9 - z - - z - - z - JALLVHLSININGY ANV IV¥3INIO

- - - - - S3LLIIOVH QNV SONIQTING

- - - - - - S1143N38 ANV SIDIAY3S TINNOSH3d

SanNn4 40 3Isn
MA M z z Iy - - qﬁ. < -
- - N B . } . - - YIHLO TV
(4% [4 - - = - - 01 - - STVINIY ALTTIDVA

SANNd 40 S32UNOS

JONVIVE ANNd ONIN3dO

<
@l
| =
| =
| =
| N
| o
~
<

g
5
et
>
b2
-4
o,
<
[-4
o
Z|
[ea]
Ly
i
Z
=
O
L
[a]
>
g
P4
g
i
2%
)]

(s.000 $) \QNIN.U.N. mlhhm Q\
dNN4d INOZ 3AVIL NDIFHOLd -MO1d HSVYD 40 LNIJWILVIS

vI SUYOGUVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIQ



PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 intarnational Drive, Porismoutn, NH G2804

s

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

September 9, 2019

VIA Email: Jason.Domke@DES.nh.gov
Jason Domke

NH Department of Environmental Services
222 International Drive, Ste. 175
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re:  Right of Entry — Portion of 360 Corporate Drive Parking Lot
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Mr. Domke:

This letter will authorize the NH Department of Environmental Services (“NHDES”) and
the U.S. Coast Guard (“USCG”) and/or its agents and contractors to enter upon the premises
located at 360 Corporate Drive, as shown in the attached Exhibit A (the “Premises™) on September
18, 2019 for use as overflow vehicle parking as part of a joint training exercise. This Right of
Entry will expire at the close of business on September 18, 2019, unless otherwise extended by
agreement of NHDES and Pease Development Authority.

This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

1. NHDES’s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that
its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of
loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or
the entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of
any of the authorities granted herein. NHDES expressly waives all claims against the Pease
Development Authority ("PDA”) for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or
occurring as a consequence of NHDES’s use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the
performance of responsibilities under this authorization.

2. NHDES’s agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a
grant of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease
the Premises. NHDES acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no
legal rights or interests shall arise with respect to the Premises.

3. NHDES’s agreement herein that the Premises will be used on an “as is” condition.

(37 TAKING YOU THERE



Jason Domke

NH Dept. of Environmental Services
September 9, 2019

Page 2

4.
at the commencement of the term of this ROE.,

NHDES’s agreement to leave the Premises in the same or better condition as existed

Please indicate by your signature below NHDES’s consent and return the same to me.

DRM/rao

ruly yours,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

2019

Agreed and accepted this _jy day of g@prtw ko

PAROEYNHDES\ROE-360 Corporate Drive 09-18-19.docx

NH DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

m
&” " Duly authorized
Print Name:_ VJ asov  Dpiccles,
Print Title:\’lmm;m q Praj-ﬂ_‘éq,.g\\,cs M"-“J’/”V
/. .

By:




Jason Domke

NH Dept. of Environmental Services
September 9, 2019

Page 3

EXHIBIT “A”

Potential Staging Area at 360 Corporate Dr DESIGNED BY: MRM  DATE:8/6/13  SCALE: 1°=100'

""?‘ = PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03601

T—r——
Sl T 2 reis ey







13

b

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

August 23,2019

Troy M. Taylor

Director, Office of Emergency Management
UJ.S. Department of State

2430 E Street, NW

SA-04B (EBast Building, Navy Hild)
Washington, D.C., 20522

Re:  Right of Entry for Use by the Department of State
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH - September 19,2019

Dear Director Tavlor:

This Right of Entry will authorize the Department of State ("DOS™) 10 enter upon a portion
of the Pease International Tradepor: Premises as designated on Exhibit A {the “Premises™) for the
purpose of vehicie parking and command/response post staging, as well as to employ traffic control

measures (which may include road closure) on a portion of lnternational Drive in the vicinity of
207 International Drive (the National Passport Center), all at its sole risk, relating to an active
shooter training exercise mvoiving first responder entities, to be conducted within the Natianal
Passport Center at 207 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, and the National Visa
Center, 32 Rochester Avenue, Porlsmouth, New IHampshire, and for no other use without the

express written consent of the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”),

This Right of Entry shall be valid on September 19, 2019 from 7:00 a.m. to 7.00 p.m. (the
“Term™). No taffic control measures shall be permitied on the public roads within the Pease

[nternational Tradeport between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 2.1, and between 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m

The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shail be: {a) without cost or expen

to the PDA; (b) subject 1o the general supervision and approval of the PDA; and (¢) subject o such

rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time 1o time,

This Right of Eatry is conditioned upon the following:

1. DOS understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry; {a) allows only
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is pranted on a non-exciusive basis; (¢) is issued without cost
to DOS, aud (d) may be revoked at will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA necd not state

a reason for any such revocation or termination. The use of the Premises shal) be orderly and

o

TAKING YOU THERE



Page 2
August 23, 2019
Re:  Right of Entry for Use by the Department of State
Pease [nternational Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH - September 19,2019

eifficient, shall not constitute a nuisance, and may only cause minimal disruption to other
activilies at the Pease International Tradeport

2. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition o state of repair of the Premises, or
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of officers,
agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises al their invitation or the

invitation of any one of them.

3. DOS agrees that the use of the Pramises under this Right of Entry is at its sole risk
and expressly waives all claims against PDA [or any such loss, damage, persona! injury or death
caused by or occurring as a consequence of such possession and/or use of the Premises or the
conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this Right of Entry.

1

4 DOS is self-insured. With respect o tort claims ansing out of DOS™ use or
occupation of the Premises the provisions of the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 2671 et seq.
(the “Act”) shall apply.

5. The Parties acknowledge that DOS will be liable directly to the harmed party for
claims for personal injury and property damage arising out of the wrongful acts or omissions, ov
negligence, of DOS’ employees acting within the scope of their employment in the operation and
maintenance of the Premises pursuant to this Right of Entry, in accordance with the terms of the
Acl. Any such tort ciaims shall be submitied and adjudicated in accordance with the Act’s
provisions and procedures.

6. DOS agrees that, given the nature of the activities performed pursiant to this ROL,
it shall communicate with all tenants at the Pease [nternational Tradeport at least ten (10) days. but
not more than fifteen (135) days, belore September 19, 2019, 1o notily them of the active shocter
training exercise (o take place on Sepiember 19, 2019, with a reminder email through the PDA
Tenants® Association the week prior o the exercise. Furthermore, DOS agrees that on Lhe date of
the training exercise, by no later than 7:30 aan., it shall place lemiporary signage i conspicuous
locations in the vicinity of the Premises notifying individuals of the active shooter tratning
exercise,

7. DOS agrees to leave the Premises in the same or better condition thar the Premises
were i before DOS™ use pursuant to this Right of Entry.

8. I'he parties to this Right of Eniry shall use reesonable wood faith elforis to resolve
any issues or disputes that arise regarding the interpretation or application of this Right of Eruy
through consultations between PDA and DOS, without waiving any otl}%}‘ights they may have,
L2
h7
¥




Page 3
August 23,2019
Re:  Right of Entry for Use by the Department of State
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH - September 19, 2019

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the
consent of DOS to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same (o me in advance of the
commencement of the Term

Sincerely.

David R. Muilen,
Executive Direclor

cc: Paui Brean, PDA Deputy Director / PSM Alrport Director
Anthony [. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel

Agreed and accepted this _0}_% day of /Q’[{[y//ﬁ“f 2019
U.S. Department of State

o %/7
v
/By: 1

7

{3 : SNSRI
\ Troy'M f}-‘lor?i tElor, Office of
~_Emergéney Mafagement

Duly Authorized

PEROISACtvE Saucter REM 1 IONAL dooy

()



EXHIBIT “A”

PREMISES

. :i‘.‘.lbl.

25 4
e hais S 5-? y

Potential Parking/Staging Areas DESIGHED BY: MRM  DATE:WI119  SCALE 120

b};:c PEASE DEVYELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIOHAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, N 3851

[e—————ray




=100

1

SCALE:

[0 L]

DAT

MRM

IGHED BY:

DES

Area at 360 Corporate Dr

ing

Potential Stag

2, PORTSMOUTH, HH 03801

S5 INTERNATIOHAL ORIV

- PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

.
Rl y——

k.

//L






MEMORANDUM

To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director TR*N_

Date: September 11, 2019

Re: Sublease between 231 Corporate Drive LLC (f/k/a Kingsbarns, LLC) and

University of New Hampshire

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA
has approved a sublease between 231 Corporate Drive LLC (f/k/a Kingsbarns, LLC) (231
Corporate”) and University of New Hampshire (“UNH”) at 231 Corporate Drive consisting of
approximately 2,643 square feet. The Sublease is for a term of sixty months (60) commencing
September 1, 2019. UNH will be utilizing the Subleased Premises for classrooms and any customary
accessory uses.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-subleases provides that;

"A Sub-sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented
to, approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

l. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Sublease;
3. The original Sublease remains primarily liable to Sublessor to pay rent and

to perform all other obligations to be performed by Sublessee under the
original Sublease; and

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible."

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 231
Corporate’s continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the
PDA/231 Corporate Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PAKANERDVZ3T Corporate (1ka RINgsbarns, LLC)\Board\U N - 231 Corporate Drive.doex
(D)3 TAKING YOU THERE

oy ROGLAZT.04AR WOWW e maarimy orr
ia S0G-427-0433 Sl A e R S AR = 6]






NOTICE OF CONSENT

This NOTICE OF CONSENT ("Notice") is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY ("Lessor") to 231 Corporate Drive, LLC f/k/a KINGSBARNS, LLC ("Lessee").
Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the "Parties."

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into a Lease for property situated at 231 Corporate Drive at Pease
International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, with an effective date of September 2, 2004
("Lease™).

B. Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its
consent to sublease if:

l. the use of the Leased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original Lease;

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;
3. the original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to

perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4. the proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.
C. Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 2,643 square feet
(Suites 102 & 103) within the Leased Premises at 231 Corporate Drive to University of New
Hampshire, a member institution of the University System of New Hampshire (“UNH”), a

body corporate and politic organized under the provisions of NH RSA Chapter 187-A.

D. The proposed sublease to UNH is for classrooms and any customary ancillary
uses.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit
A, with UNH for approximately 2,643 square feet within the Leased Premises, conditioned upon
an amendment to the sublease to add language regarding the PDA as an additional insured in certain
circumstances consistent with Article 15 of the Lease.

2. Upon execution of the sublease with UNH and the required amendment, Lessee shal]
provide Lessor with a copy of the executed sublease and amendment, copies of all required
insurance certificates and a certificate of good standing from the State of New Hampshire for UNH.



3. Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate
of Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a).

4, Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to
pay rent and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease.

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this 30 day of _ Hrey €57, 2019 by the
Pease Development Authority.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By: « ;//ﬂ“’\

Its: Executive Director

AGREED AND ACCEPTED

FANL, AThiR e Mo s

P KANTRD23 1 Corporate {ka Kingsbarns, LLCYConsent:UNH (231 Corporate Drove) doex

2



EXHIBIT "A"

SUBLEASE



LEASE AGREEMENT

BASIC LEASE INFORMATION

LANDLORD:

TENANT:

TENANT NOTICE ADDRESS:

BUILDING:

PREMISES (INCLUDING
RENTABLE FLOOR AREA):

LEASE REFERENCE DATE:

COMMENCEMENT DATE:

TENANT'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE:

RENT COMMENCEMENT DATE:

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE:

BASE TERM:

SECURITY DEPOSIT:

| WASRI229 1}

231 Corporate Drive, LLC

University of New Hampshire, a member institution
of the University System of New Hampshire

UNH Professional Development & Training
Attn: Chris LaBelle, Director

59 College Road

Durham, NH 03824

The building commonly known as:
231 Corporate Drive
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

The area identified as Suites 102 and 103 located on
the first floor of the Building, consisting of
approximately 2,643 rentable square feet, as more
particularly shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.

August&_@_, 2019

The earlier of: (i) the datc on which the work is
substantially completed as set forth in the Work
Letter attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Work
Letter™); or (ii) September 1, 2019. The
Commencement Date shall be confirmed pursuaat to
a confirmation agreement between the parties.

10.8%
The Commencement Date

1:59 p.m. on the last day of the sixtieth (60™) full
calendar month following the Commencement Date.

Approximately sixty (60) months commencing on
the Commencement Date and expiring on the Lease
Expiration Date,




ANNUAL BASE RENT TABLE (NNN)

Base Term
Lease Year  Rentable Square Feet  $/sf Base Rent  Annual Basc Rent  Monthly Base Rent
1 2,643 '
2 2,643
3 2,643
4 2,643
5 2,643

{(WGHES2YY () (]}



DEFINITIONS . c.oteueeiiiriinneniet it ceenre sttt e s st s e 1
I DEMISED PREMISES w.....ov.vooumamassssonsasesssammunmssssssssasssssssssssssenssssssssssssmnmessesessees e 5
2 TERM ...ouuorvrrnmnersenassviserenes S 6
3 EXTENSION OPTION ..c.ccomrmrermmnreetenrsennnecaosssssssnnsssssssmes Error! Bookmark not defined.
4 PREPARATION OF THE PREMISES; LANDLORD’S WORK ovvvvoooo oo 6
5. CONDITION OF THE PREMISES ......ovvvvcuecmmeerereressessssseseso oo, 6
6 RENT ...ercviemeracerennnes 7
7 OPERATING EXPENSES AND REAL ESTATE TAXES......vvvooooooeooooooooo 7
8 PAYMENT OF OPERATING EXPENSES AND PROPERTY TAXES.o.......... 10
9 PLACE OF PAYMENT OF RENT wooouectvmsceeeneeeseeeeeee e .1
IL  QUIET ENJOYMENT cooovueeccrecermeemsmseeesssassessnssossesemsssssessssssssssssessesesessesessseseseess s 12
13. ALTERATIONS e sesssemsacsessssssessss e seeonssesesssssssssssssssmsssoss e eeeeeeeeeesesees e 13
L4, SIGNAGE oo eeeomessssinssessssssssssssesssessossssissssssssssssesemsesmssssssesesesssmssossoseeeseesseeses s 14
15. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS ..oouvvvevummivressasssssessennommmemmessessssssseseesssoseeeeeeesseessee 15
16.  INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE e eveueemeeeseroeeseceoeseosoo 16
7. DAMAGE TO THE PREMISES «ccoovvvevmrreeeereeeemmmememsesoes oo oo eeoosoeeoeeoeeoeeeeseeeesso e 17
LR 0 0101 030 D10 1% 1N £ 18
20.  INTENTIONALLY OMITTED ...ooooioeormrommernreeensceereeeeeeeemmmeeeemseessesssesoseos oo eeeeeeeeeosesoe 22
2L ACCESS. ccuomiumiccemscmmsmmsimsisssssssssessossssasssssssssssmnssssosssessenenesssssssssesssmsssessoseseeeeeesseese s 22
22.  SUBLETTING/ASSIGNMENT ..ccovvceuruurmmrmresssessessmmnssesssessssmsssmsssssssosseseseemsemeesse e 23
23, SUBORDINATION coovveeesveseeensssescsseneossessessssessssismsssssmsonnsssssssmssssessosessssseessemsnnnsnee s 24
25, MORTGAGEE’S RIGHTS w.oovccovonrrrsnrsrnnsrcosressssevsssmemoessssmseeesosseeseeeseeemsseeseees oo s ses 25
26.  NOTICE TO MORTGAGEE........coormn..... 25
27, TENANT’S COVENANTS ..commimmmremrrreeceseesessssssssessosmssossssssssseseeesesesas 26
28.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT . cuuccommemnreemreserssesemeeosesesssssesseeseosesesseseseeeesese s 27
29, REMEDIES oot cneveraransssssmssnenssssersssesesssssssmsssesmmesssoeesees oo ssoe e 28
30.  NO WAIVER; NO ACCORD AND SATISFA CTION e 30
3. FORCE MAJTEURE..cuuuuuceereumeersismmmmessssmseinsssssmmmosesssemssossessessssssoss oo eeesesoeseeseoo 30
32 RECORDING oooooooeeseenvessssacismemensassssssssassesossassssssosessesssssmmesssssssnmsesssssssesesseeessemeesesee e 30
33, MECHANICS LIENS ..cooveeeimmrenscsssssesnssesessessssssssssesssssssmssssssses s ssesesen w3l
34, DEFINITIONS coooooossvssussssss snesssmsssssssssessassssosssssssasenssessessessss sossesmmmmsesssenses s 31

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(WoNN9HY. 1) 3



35.  SEPARABILITY CLAUSE; COUNTERPARTS

36. NOTICES

37.  INTERRUPTION OF UTILITIES ..

38. REPRESENTATION...

-----------------------------------

39.  HOLDING OVER; RESERVATION OF ROOF RIGHTS

40. HAZARDOUS MATERIAL

41.  REPRESENTATIONS.......

42. GOVERNING LAW..ormrrerrnnnn,

43. BROKERAGE

45. LIMITED RECOURSE ..............

46. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.............

(\WEHRYIEY, 1}

iv

31
32
32
33
33
34
35
35
35
36



EXHIBITS:

Exhibit A - Premises Diagram

Exhibit B - Rules and Regulations

Exhibit B-1 - Rules and Regulations for Alterations

Exhibit C Landlord Work Letter

Exhibit D University of New Hampshire Credit Information

(AVAASR28Y v



THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease™) is by and between 231 Corporate Drive,
LLC, a New Hampshire limited liability company, having an address c/o Kane Management
Group LLC, 210 Commerce Way, Suite 300, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 (“Landlord™),
and University of New Hampshire, a body corporate and politic organized under the provisions
of the New Hampshirc Revised Statues Annotated Chapter 187-A, acting by and through the
University of New Hampshire, a member institution of the University System of New Hampshire
with its principal mailing address at 105 Main Street, Durham, New Hampshire (“Tenant”).

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the following meanings for all purposes of this Lease and
shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms herein defined.

“Additional Rent” means all amounts, liabilities and obligations other than Base Rent,
which Tenant assumes or agrees to pay under this Lease.

“Additional Transmission Facilities” is defined in Section 19(e) of this Lease,

“Allowance” is defined in Section 4(b)(1) of this Lease.

“Alterations™ is defined in Section [3(a) of this Leuse.

“Alternative Service Provider” is defined in Section 19(c) of this Lease.

“Base Building” means the structural portions of the Building, the common entryways,
stairways and corridors, elevators loading docks, the public restrooms, and the Building
mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems and equipment located in the internal core of the
Building on the floor or floors on which the Premises are located.

“Base Electrical Service’ is defined in Section 19(a)(v) of this Lease.

“Base Rent” is defined in Section 6(a) of this Lease.,

“Base Term" is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Basic HYAC Service” is defined in Section 19(a)(ii) of this Lease.

“Basic Lease Information™ means the pages preceding the Table of Contents, which pages
are hereby incorporated by this reference.

“Basic Telecom Service” is defined in Section 19(e) of the Lease.,

“Broker" is defined in Section 43 of this Lease.

[

Building” is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

[WEHRYZE9. |}



“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other recognized state or
federal holiday in the State of which the building is located.

“Commencement Date” is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Common Areas” is defined in Section 1(b) of this Lease.

“Current Telecom Provider” is defined in Section 19(e) of this Lease.

“Electric Service Provider” is defined in Section 19(c) of this Lease.

“Environmental Damages” means all liabilities, injuries, losses, claims, damages,
settlements, attorneys’ and consultants’ fees, fines and penalties, interest and expenses, and costs
of environmental site investigations, reports and cleanup, including without limitation costs
incurred in connection with: any investigation or assessment of site conditions or of health of
persons using the Property; risk assessment and monitoring; any cleanup, remedial, removal or
restoration work required by any Governmental Authority recommended by Landlord’s
environmental consultant provided that such consultant is a licensed site professional; any decrease
in value of the Property; any damage caused by loss or restriction of rentable or usable space in
the Property; or any damage caused by adverse impact on marketing or financing of the Property.

“Enviconmental Laws™ means any present or future Law, permit, license or binding
determination of any governmental authority relating to, imposing liability or standards
concerning, or otherwise addressing the environment, health or safety, and applicable to the
Premises, including, but not limited to: the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 US.C. Section 6901 et seq.; the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C.
Section 2601 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. Scction 7401 et seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33
U.S.C. Section 1251 et seq. any so-called “Superfund™ or “Superlien” law that applies to the
Premises; and the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 651 et seq., and any
analogous state statutes, including New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A and ch.147-A and Parts Env-
Wm 110,211-216, 351-353, 400- 00 of the New Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, as each
of the foregoing may from time to time be amended and hereafter in effect.

“Estimated Expense Statement” is defined in Section 7(b)(i) of this Lease.

“Estimated Per Foot Annual Electric Cost” is defined in Section 19(b) of this Lease.

“Event of Default” is defined in Section 28 of this Lease.

“Extension Term” is defined in Section 3 of this Lease.

“Fiscal Year™ means the twelve-month fiscal period for which Property Taxes are assessed
against the Premises by the applicable Governmental Authority.

“Force Majeure” is defined in Section 3! of this Lease.

{\WGRRY2EY 1} 2



“Governmental Authority” mcans the United States of America, the State of New
Hampshire, the city or town in which the Building is located, any political subdivision thereof and
any agency, department, commission, board, bureau or instrumentality of any of the foregoing, or
any quasi-governmental authority, now existing or hereafter created, having jurisdiction over the
Building.

“HazMat Documents” is defined in Section 40(c) of this Lease.

“Hazardous Materials” means substances defined as “hazardous substances”, “hazardous
materials”, “hazardous wastes” or “toxic substances” in any applicable federal, state or local
statute, rule, regulation or determination, including but not limited to the Environmental Laws;
and asbestos, PCB's, radioactive substances, methane, volatile hydrocarbons, petroleum or
petroleum.-derived substances or wastes, radon, industrial solveats or any other material as may
be specified in applicable Law or regulations. “Hazardous Materials” shall also mean means any
substances, materials or wastes regulated by any governmental authority or deemed or defined as
a ‘“hazardous substance”, “hazardous material”, “toxic substance”, “toxic pollutant”,
“contaminant”, “pollutant™, “solid waste”, “hazardous waste” or words of similar import under
applicable legal requirements, including natural or synthetic gas, urea formaldehyde, or the
emission of non-ionizing radiation, microwave radiation or electromagnetic fields at levels in
excess of those (if any) specified by any governmental authority or which may cause a heaith
hazard or danger to property, or the emission of any form of ionizing radiation.

“Hazardous Materials List” is defined in Section 40(b) of this Lease.

“Improvements” means the Building and other improvemeats to be constructed on the
Property, together with any additional buildings, structures, improvements, or other building
fixtures subsequently added to or constructed on the Property, if any.

“Indemnified Parties” means, with respect to any Person, the trustees, beneficiaries,
officers, directors, stockholders, partners, members, managers, beneficial owners, employees,
agents, contractors, attorneys, and mortgagees of such Person.

“Landlord” is defined in the Basic Lease Information and in the introductory paragraph of
this Lease.

“Landlord’'s Work" is defined in Section 4(a) of this Lease.

“Late Charge Amount” means, with respect to any delinquent amount hereunder, five
percent (5%) of such delinquent amount.

“Laws” means all present and future laws, rules, orders, ordinances, regulations, statutes,
requirements, codes and executive ocders, extraordinary as well as ordinary, of all Governmental
Authorities now existing or hereafter created, and of any and all of their departments and bureaus,
and of any applicable fire rating bureau, or other bady exercising similar functions.

[WasRYIRY. [ | 3



“Lease” is defined in the introductory paragraph of this Lease.

“Lease Expiration Date" is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Lease Ycar” means each consecutive twelve (12) calendar month period immediately
following the Commencement Date, but if the Commencement Date shall fall on other than the
first day of a calendar month, then such term shall mean each consecutive twelve calendar month
period commencing with the first day of the first full calendar month following the calendar month
in which the Commencement Date occurs, however, the first lease year shall include any partial
month between the Commencement Date and the first day of the first full calendar month
immediately following the Commencement Date.

“Mortgage” shall mean any mortgage that includes the Building and/or the Premises given
by Landlord to a Mortgagee to secure a loan.

“Mortgagee” shall mean any holder of a Mortgage that includes the Landlord’s interest in
the Building and/or the Premises, or any part thereof.

“Normal Business Hours” is defined in Section 21 of this Lease.

“Operating Expenses” is defined in Section (a)(ii) of this Lease.

“Overdue Rate” means two percent (2%) per month or, if lower, the maximum annual
interest rate allowed by law for business or commercial loans (not primarily for personal, family
or housetiold purposes) calculated on a per diem basis.

“Permitted Use™ is defined in Section [2(a) of this Lease.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint
venture, association, joint stock company, trust, trustee(s) of a trust, unincorporated organization,
government or Governmental Authority, agency or political subdivision thereof, or other business
entity or arrangement.

“Premises” is defined in Basic Lease Information.

“Property” is defined as all of the real estate and Improvements owned or leased by the
Landlord and located at 75 Portsmouth Boulevard, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

“Property Taxes” is defined in Section 7(a)(i) of this Lease.

“Proportionate Share” is defined in the Basic Lease [nformation.

“Reconciled Expense Staternent” s defined in Section 7(b)(ii) of this Lease.

“Rent™ means Base Rent and Additional Rent.

{WaRHRY 1) 4



“Rent Commencement Date” is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Review Notice” is defined in Section 8{h) of this Lease.

“Substantial Takine” is defined in Section 18(b) of this Lease.

“Supplemental HVAC Service” is defined in Section 19( a)(ii) of this Lease.

“Tenant” is defined in the Basic Lease [nformation and in the introductory paragraph of
this Lease.

“Tenant’s Agents” means any and all subtenants, licensees, concessionaires, erployees,
agents, contractors, invitees or anyone else claiming by, through or under Tenant or its SUCCessors
or assigns.

“Tenant’s Proportionate Share” is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Term™ is defined in the Basic Lease Information.

“Work Letter” is defined in Section 4(a) of this Lease.

1. DEMISED PREMISES

(a) Landlord hereby demises and leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby Jeases and rents
from Landlord, the Premises in the Building, which Building shall be deemed to coatain
approximately 24,588 rentable square fect.

{b) Appurtenant Rights and Reservations. Tenant shall have, subject to the rules and
regulations established by Landlord and attached hereto as Exhibit B (as the same may be
amended, modified or supplemented by Landlord in Landlord’s reasonable discretion from time
to time, the “Rules and Regulations™) and to the right of Landlord to designate and change from
time to time areas and facilities so to be used, as appurtenant (o the Premises, including without
limitation, such areas, spaces, facilities and equipment made available by Landlord for the
common use of Tenant and others using or occupying the Building (to the extent so designated by
Landlord for common use from time to time, the “Common Areas”), (i) the non-exclusive right
to use, and permit its invitees to use, in common with others, public or common lobbies, hallways,
stairways, and elevators and common walkways necessary for access to the Building, and if the
portion of the Premises includes less than the entire floor, the common toilets, corridors and
elevator lobby of such floor; and (ii) Tenant’s pro rata share of unreserved parking spaces located
in the surface parking lot at the Building on a non-exclusive, first-come, first-served basis. With
respect to parking spaces, Landlord also reserves the right to institute a tag or sticker system to
monitor compliance by Tenant and others of use of the parking spaces. Tenant shall comply with
all rules and regulations set forth by Landlord from time to time regarding the parking area
including, without limitation, rules and regulations regarding guest parking. Landlord shall have
no obligation to police the parking area or to ensure the safety of Tenant’s automobiles or any
personal property therein. The Premises shall be designated a non-smoking area and Tenant will

{WEEHIIRD |} 5



comply, and cause its employees and invitees to comply, with Building regulations regarding
non-smoking areas.

Landiord reserves the right from time to time to construct new buildings on the Property,
construct additions and make alterations to the Building, and to change the size, location or
arrangement of and otherwise alter Common Areas at the Property, and to make any other
improvements Landlord may desire including to install, use, maintain, relocate, repair and replace
pipes, ducts, conduits, wires, fixtures, facilities, meters and equipment located inside or outside of
the Premises for service to or in the Premises and to or in the other parts of the Property; and to
grant easements whether exclusive or in common, in and to the Common Areas of the Property to
others, provided that no such additions, alterations or changes materially interfere with Tenant's
beneficial usc and enjoyment of the Premises.

2. TERM

Subject to the conditions herein stated, Tenant shall hold the Premises for the Term
commencing on the Commencement Date and terminating at 11:59 p.m. on the Lease Expiration
Date. Landlord currently anticipates that the Commencement Date will occur on or about
September [, 2019 (the “Estimated Commencement Date’).

3. RESERVED

4. PREPARATION OF THE PREMISES: LANDLORD’S WORK

Landlord’s Work. Landlord shall deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant on the
Commencement Date in accordance with this Section 4. Landlord agrees to complete the
improvements specified in the Work Letter attached hereto as Exhibit C at Landlord’s sole cost
and expense (collectively, the “Work™) in a good and workmanlike manner in compliance with all
applicable laws. Other than the Work, Landlord shall have no obligation for the completion or
repair of the Premises and Tenant shall accept the Premises in the condition set forth in Section 5
below.

5. CONDITION OF THE PREMISES

Upon occupancy, Tenant shall be deemed to have acknowledged that all Work has been
completed to Tenant’s satisfaction and that Tenant has waived any claim that Landlord has failed
to perform any of the Work. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that, except for the Work, Tenant
has agreed to accept the Premises in “as is” condition, and except as otherwise expressly provided
in this Lease, Tenant agrees that LANDLORD MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES AS TO THE CONDITION OF THE PREMISES, EQUIPMENT OR
FURNITURE SITUATED THEREIN OR AS TO THE SUITABILITY OF THE PREMISES FOR
THE USE INTENDED BY TENANT AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY
THEREFOR.

{WHESY2EY 1} 6



6. RENT

—

(a) Commencing on the Rent Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay to Landiord
annual base rent (“Base Rent") during the Term on a triple net (NNN) basis in the following
amouants:

ANNUAL BASE RENT TABLE (NNN)

Base Term

Lease Year  Rentable Square Feet

! 2,643
2 2,643
3 2,643
4 2,643
5 2,643

(b) Tenant shall also pay, as Additional Rent, all Operating Expenses and Property
Taxes which may arise or become due during the Term of the Lease in proportion to its
Proportionate Share. Tenant shall pay Additional Rent without any abatement, deduction or setoff,
and, in case of any nonpayment thereof, Landlord shall have in addition to any other rights and
remedies, all of the rights and remedies provided by law for the nonpayment of Base Rent. The
time for and calculation of Tenant’s payments of Additional Rent shall be governed by the terms
and conditions contained in Section 7 of this Lease.

(e) All rent payments are due in advance without demand, deduction or set-off (except
as otherwise provided herein) an the first day of each and every month during the Term and any
extension or renewal thereof. Base Rent for any partial month shall be prorated. All increases in
Base Rent or Additional Rent, if any, shall become effective on the first day of the subsequent
month.

(@) Reserved.

7. OPERATING EXPENSES AND REAL ESTATE TAXES

(@) As used in this Lease:

(i)  “Property Taxes” shall mean all taxes, assessments and betterments levied,
assessed or imposed by any Governmental Authority upon or against the Improvements and the
Property, or payments in lieu thereof, including reasonable expenses, which shall include, without
limitation, any and all payments due for water and sewer charges and fees, use charges, fire
service fees and similar payments, as well as all fees of attorneys, appraisers and other consultants
incurred in connection with any efforts to obtain abatements or reductions which may be
requested by Tenaat. Property Taxes shall not include estate, income, gift or franchise taxes of
Landlord or any interest charges, fines or penalties incurred as a result of Landlord’s failure to
timely pay Property Taxes (unless such failure is due to Tenant's delinquency). If, at any time

[WGHRYZED 1} 7



during the Term of this Lease, as it may be extended hereunder, any tax or excise on rents or other
taxes, however described, are levied or assessed against Landlord with respect to the rent reserved
hereunder in substitution for real estate taxes assessed or levied on the Improvements and the
Land, or payments in lieu thereof, such tax or excise on rents shall be included in Property Taxes.

(i) “Operating Expenses” shall mean all costs incurred and expenditures paid

by Landlord in connection with the operation, administration, decoration, cleaning, repair,
management, maintenance and upkeep of the Property including, without limitation, expenses for
the following:

SWARKYIRY 1}

A. Compensation and all fringe benefits, worker’s compensation,
insurance premiums, wages and taxes paid to, for, or with respect to all persons, up
to the level of Property Manager, engaged in operating, maintaining, or cleaning
the Property;

B. Cost of services, materials, supplies and equipment furnished or
used in the operation of the Building and the Property, including without limitation
any charge for personnel of Landlord, any manager of the Property or any other
entity performing periodic services at the Property in connection with the operation,
maintenance, repair, management, maintenance and upkeep of the Property;

C. Cost of window washing and waste removal for the Building;
D. Cost of maintenance, cleaning and repairs of the Property,
E. Fees, charges, and other costs including management fees for the

then current calendar year, legal fees, and accounting fees reasonably incurred by
Landlord in connection with the operation, management, maintenance, and repair
of the Property;

F. Cost of all utilities and telecommunications services serving the
Property (expressly excluding any utilities which are (i) separately metered to the
Premises and shall be paid by Tenant directly to the utility provider or are otherwise
reimbursed by Tenant separate from Operating Expenses, or (ii) so separately paid
by other tenants);

G. Cost of the operation of the exterior portions of the Building and the
Property, including snow and ice removal, landscaping (including planting,
replanting and care thereof), parking (including repaving and restriping), exterior
lighting, roof and signs;

H. Expenses for or on account of the upkeep and maintenance of
equipment located within the Building or on the Property, including payments
under service contracts for maintenance of equipment such as, but not limited to,
security, air-conditioning, heat, or elevator equipment;



(b)

SWEHRMZRD 1)

L Premiums and deductibles for any insurance carried by Landlord
with respect to the Property;

J. Personal property, sales and use taxes on material, equipment,
supplies and services used in connection with the operation, administration,
cleaning, repair, management, maintenance and/or upkeep of the Property, the cost
of all permits and licenses and all fees for fire, security and police protection;

K. The cost of all repairs, alterations, additions and replacements to the
Property required by any law, ordinance, order or regulation of any public authority
passed or adopted after the date of this Lease, except to the extent any such repair,
alteration, addition or replacement is capital in nature, in which case such expense
shall be included in the Operating Expenses in accordance with Scction 7(a)(ii)(L):

L. The cost of any structural or non-structural repairs and replacements
that are capital in nature, as amortized using a commercially reasonable rate over
the time period of the remaining useful life of the capital repair or replacement in
accordance with Generally Acceptable Accounting Principles;

M. The cost of maintenance and repair itcms, such as painting of
common areas, replacement of carpet in elevator lobbies, and the like, or which are
necessitated by any act, omission or misase by Tenani;

N. Intentionally omitted;
0. The cost of any security services and equipment for the Building;
P. The costs of any improvements or additions to the Building which

are performed primarily to reduce Operating Expenses or otherwise improve the
efficiency or safety of the Building; and

Q. All other reasonable and necessary expenses paid in connection with
the cleaning, operating, managing, maintaining and repairing of the Building and
Property, or either for similar buildings in the greater Portsmouth, New Hampshire
area.

As used in this Lease:

(1) “Estimated Expense Statement” shall mean a written statement provided by
Landlord and setting forth the estimated Property Taxes and Operating Expenses
for the calendar year so specified and Tenant’s Proportionate Share thereof,

(i) “Reconciled Expense Statement” shall mean a written staternent provided
by Landlord and setting forth the final Property Taxes for the current Fiscal Year
and final Operating Expenses for the immediately preceding calendar year and



Tenant’s Proportionate Share thereof, together with a reconciliation of such figures
against the amounts actually paid by Tenant on account thereof.

8. PAYMENT OF OPERATING EXPENSES AND PROPERTY TAXES

(@) Not later than ninety (90} days (or as soon thercafter as is reasonably practicable
for Landlord) after the Rent Commencement Date and the start of each successive calendar year
during the Term of this Lease, Landlord shall provide Tenant with an Estimated Expense Statement
for the Property. From time to time, Landlord may re-estimate the Property Taxes and Operating
Expenses to be due from Tenant and deliver a copy of the re-estimate to Tenant, and such re-
estimate shall thereafter constitute the Estimated Expense Statement for such year. Thereafter, the
monthly installments of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Property Taxes and Operating Expenses
payable by Tenant shall be appropriately adjusted in accordance with the estimations so that, by
the end of the calendar year in question, Tenant shall have paid Tenant's Proportionate Share of
all of the Property Taxes and Operating Expenses as Additional Rent, as estimated by Landlord.
Any amounts paid bascd on such an estimate shall be subject to adjustment as herein provided
when actual Operating Expenses and final Property Taxes are available for each calendar year
(with respect to Operating Expenses) or Fiscal Year (with respect to Property Taxes).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, Tenant hereby agrees that,
during any calendar year in which the entire Building is not provided with Building standard
services or is not completely occupied, Landlord shall compute all Operating Expenses for such
calendar year that vary with occupancy as though one hundred percent (100%) percent of the
Building were provided with such Building standard services and was one hundred percent (100%)
percent occupied. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, where
Tenant’s usage of water and sewer is substantially larger on a proportional basis than other tenants
in the Building, Tenant shall pay for such larger usage as Additional Reat. In the alternative, if the
Premises can be separately metered for water and sewer, Landlord and Tenant agree, at Tenant's
cost, to arrange for such separate metering in which case, Tenant shall pay directly for the usage
established by the meter.

(b) ~ Commencing on the Rent Commencemeat Date, and monthly thereafter during the
Term of this Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, concurrently with its monthly installment of
Base Rent for such month, one-twelfth (1/12) of each of the amounts estimated by Landlord to be
Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Expenses and Property Taxes for such period, as sct
forth in the Estimated Expense Statement. Such payments shall be credited to the sum finally
determined to be payable for such period pucsuant to the Reconciled Expense Statement.

(c) By April I (or as soon thereafter as is practicable) of each Lease Year during the
Term, commencing with calendar year 2020, Landlord shall provide Tenant with the Reconciled
Expense Statement with respect to the preceding Lease Year (with respect to Operating Expenses)
or current Fiscal Year (with respect to Property Taxes). In the event that the total of Additional
Rent actually paid by Tenant during such preceding Lease Year exceeds Tenant’s Proportionate
Share of Operating Expenses and Property Taxes as showan in the Reconciled Expense Statement
for the corresponding actual periods, the overage shall be credited by Landlord to Tenant toward
the next years Additional Rent due hereunder. In the event that the total of Additional Rent actually
made by Tenant during such preceding Lease Year is less than Tenant’s Proportionate Share of

{WASRY28Y. 1} IO



Operating Expenses and Property Taxes as shown in the Reconciled Expense Statement for the
corresponding actual periods, then Tenaat shall remit to Landlord the amount of such shortfall in
immediately available funds within thirty (30) days of Tenant’s receipt of such Reconciled
Expense Statement.

(d) If this Lease shall terminate other than on the last day of a calendar year, Tenant
shall be liable for only that portion of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Expenses for
such calendar year represented by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of days
of the Term which fall within such calendar year and the denominator of which shall be three
hundred sixty-five (365). If this Lease shall terminate other than on the last day of a Fiscal Year,
Tenant shall be liable for only that portion of Tenant's Proportionate Share of Property Taxes for
such Fiscal Year represented by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of days of
the Term which fall within such Fiscal Year and the denominator of which shall be three hundred
sixty-five (365).

(¢) Reserved.

H Any amounts that are owed by Tenant to Landlord hereunder a5 a result of a default
by Tenant in its obligations hereunder (including, without limitation, any amounts owed to
Landlord pursuant to Section 29(b) hereot) shall constitute Additional Rent and shall be due and
payable within thirty (30) days of Tenant's receipt of an invoice from Landlord detailing such
amount,

(g) Landlord’s failure to render any statement with respect to any year, or Landlord’s
delay in rendering said statement beyond a date specified herein, shall not prejudice Landlord’s
right to render a Landlord’s statement with respect to that or any subsequent year.

(k) Tenant agrees to pay on or before the due date thereof all bills for utilities, metering
charges and the like for any utilities that are separately metered to the Premises.

(1) Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to contest, by appropriate legal
proceedings, the amount or validity or application, in whole or in part, of any Property Taxes and,
if such proceedings are successful, Tenant shall be entitled to Tenant’s Proportionate Share of any
refund of the Property Taxes actually received by Landlord provided such refund relates to
Property Taxes paid by Tenant under this Lease, less Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the
reasonable expenses incurred by Landlord in prosecuting such proceedings.

() Any statements, invoices and other notices delivered by Landlord to Tenant in
connection with this Section & may be sent by electronic mail or the methods set forth in Section 36
below.

9. PLACE OF PAYMENT OF RENT

All payments of rent shall be made by Tenant to Landlord without notice or demand via
ACH or at such place as Landlord may from time to time designate in writing. The initial place for
payment of rent shall be c/o Kane Management Group LLC, 210 Commerce Way, Suite 300,
Portsmouth, NH 03801 or at such other address or wire transfer instructions as Landlord may

(WSHBYZHY 1) I



specify by notice pursuant to Section 36 below. Any extension of time for the payment of any
installment of rent, or the acceptance of rent after the time at which it is due and payable shall not
be a waiver of the rights of Landlord to insist on having all other payments made in the manner
and at the times herein specified.

10,  SECURITY DEPQOSIT

As security for Tenant's faithful performance of Tenant's obligations hereunder, Tenaat
shall deliver to Landlord, upon the execution of this Lease by Tenant, a check in the amount of
S oscther with the University System of New Hampshire

ISy e e S e
AR e P e

| 2

Credit Intormation attached hereto as Exhibit D.

If Tenant fails to pay Base Rent, Additional Rent or other charges due hereunder, or
otherwise defaults with respect to any provision of this Lease beyond any applicable notice and
cure periods, Landlord may (but shall have no obligation to) use all or any portion of the Security
Deposit for the payment of any monthly installment of Base Rent, Additional Rent ot other charge
due hereunder, to pay any other sum to which Landlord may become obligated by reason of
Tenant’s default, or to compensate Landlord for any loss or damage which Landlord may suffer
thereby. If Landlord so uses or applics all or any portion of the Security Deposit, Tenant shall
within ten (10) business days after written demand therefor, restore the Security Deposit to the
initial face amount thereof. Provided Tenant is not otherwise in default under the terms of this
Lease, the Security Deposit, or so much thereof as shall not then have heen used by Landlord, shall
be returned without payment of interest or other amount for its use, to Tenant (or, at Landlord's
option, to the last assignee, if any, of Tenant's interest hereunder) within sixty (60) days after the
expiration of the Term hereof, and after Tenant has vacated and delivered the Premises as required
hereunder. Landlord may retain an amouat reasonably calculated to be sufficient to pay any final
amount of Taxes or Expenses for the Lease Year in which the Term of this [ease ends.

1. QUIET ENJOYMENT

The Tenant, upon payment of the Rent herein reserved and upon the performance of all the
terms and conditions of this Lease, shall at all times during the Term of this Lease, peaceably and
quietly enjoy the Premises without any disturbance from Landlord or from any other person
claiming through Landlord, subject, nevertheless, to the terms and conditions of this Lease.

12.  USE OF THE PREMISES

(a) The Premises shall be used by Tenant for classrooms and any customary ancillary
uses thereof, provided that all such uses are permitted by right under applicable federal, state or
lacal law, statute, regulation, or ordinance, and for no other uses without the prior written consent
of Landlord (“Permitted Use”).

(b)  The Tenant shall not at any time use ar occupy the Premises in violation of the
certificate of occupancy or building permit issued for the Building or any applicable zoning

(WARHTIHEY 12



ordinance. The statement in the Lease of the nature of the business to be conducted by Tenaat in
the Premises does not constitute a representation, warranty or guaranty by Landlord that such
business may be conducted on the Property or is lawful under the certificate of occupancy or
building permit or is otherwise permitted by law. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it is the
sole responsibility of the Tenant to determine all zoning information, requirements, and restrictions
and secure all necessary or required permits and approvals necessary for Tenant’s use of the
Premises.

(c) Tenant agrees that it will not: (1) make any use of the Premises requiring the use of any
odorous chemicals, which will permeate beyond the Premises, or (ii) cause any vibrations, noise
or other disturbance which would interfere with the use of the Building by any other tenant or
extend beyond the Premises, including, without limitation, interference with television and radio
equipment or the generation of radio frequency radiation and/or electromagnetic radiation.

13. ALTERATIONS

(a) Tenant shall have the right to make alterations, additions and improvements
(collectively, “Alterations™) to the Premises without obtaining Landlord’s consent, provided that
(1) such Alterations do not materially adversely affect the layout of the Premises, the soundness,
structural integrity, value, utility, operation, appearance, size, shape or useful life of the structure
or the equipment or systems of the Building; (ii) the same do not require the approval of any
governmental authority with jurisdiction over the Premises, including, without limitation, approval
in the form of a building permit; (iii) Tenant shall provide Landlord with a description of the
Alterations no later than ten (10) business days prior to commencing such Alterations; and (iv) the
cost of such Alterations do not exceed $5,000 in the aggregate per twelve (12) month period.

(b) Any other Alteration shall require Tenant to comply with the terms of Exhibit B-]
attached hereto and the prior written consent of Landlord, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned, or delayed provided Tenant’s planned Alterations do not (i) involve any
alteration or modification to the structural clements of the Building, (i) affect the outside
appearance of the Building, (iii) involve any physical alteration of any portion of the Building
outside of the Premises, or (iv) except for minor and temporary inconveniences caused by Tenant's
construction, permanently affect any other tenant or occupant of the Building or any common areas
of the Building, except that (1) Landlord shall have the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
require Tenant to provide Landlord with plans and specifications for any Alterations requiring
Landlord’s consent (including detailed electrical and mechanical plans and specifications if
applicable) which are at least 90% complete, no later than fifteen (15) business days prior to
commencing such Alterations. The Landlord shall have fifteen (15) days after the receipt of the
same within which to point out the Landlord’s objections to the same. The Tenant shall make
changes therein as shall be required to meet the Landlord’s objections within thirty (30) days after
receipt of the Landlord’s objections and shall resubmit revised plans and specifications for the
Landlord’s approval as provided above; (2) Landlord shall have the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to require Tenant to provide Landlord with “as built” plans detailing any Alterations
requiring Landlord’s consent at the completion thereof and to certify in writing to Landlord that
any Alterations requiring Landlord’s consent have been completed in accordance with the plans
and specifications approved by Landlord; (3) Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant to

IWERKES2RY L l 3



utilize any contractor designated by Landlord for any Alterations requiring Landlord’s consent
relating to or affecting the roof of the Building or any electrical, plumbing or mechanical systems
of the Building; and (4) Landlord shall have the right to prescribe the components to be utilized in
any Alterations requiring Landlord’s consent affecting the electrical, plumbing or mechanical
systems of the Building. Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Lease to the coatrary, the
Tenant agrees that in exercising its rights provided in this paragraph, the Tenant shall not take,
permit or suffer any actions which shall void or invalidate in whole or in part any applicable roof
bond or warranty for the Property or any equipment lease or service agreement regarding the
mechanical, electrical or plumbing systems of the Property.

(c) All work done in connection with any Alterations shall be done in a good and
workmanlike manner employing materials of good quality of the same manufacture as existing
equipment, if reasonably available, and in compliance with Laws, by contractocs approved by
Landlord which approval will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If Tenaat employs outside
contractors for Alterations to the Premises, Tenant shall be responsible that such contractors abide
by all reasonable procedures, rules and regulations as promulgated by the Landlard. All Alterations
shall be performed in such a manner as to maintain harmonious labor relations, not to damage the
Building or interfere with the construction or operation of the Building. Tenant shall indemnify
and hold Landlord harmless from all claims, liabilities, damages and expenses arising out of any
work performed by or on behalf of Tenant, including without limitation, any additional costs
incurred in supplying services or repairing damage caused by Tenant’s contractors. Tenant shall
cause each contractor to carry worker’s compensation insurance in statutory amounts covering the
employees of all contractors and subcontractors, and comprehensive general liability insurance
with minimum limits of $1 million per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate naming”
Landlord as an additional insured. Tenant shall take reasonable steps to cause its contractors to
deliver to Landlord certificates of all such insurance. Upon the completion of any Alteration,
Tenant shall supply to Landlord as buiit drawings and specifications of such Alterations. Any
Alterations made by Tenant, and any fixtures installed as part thereof, shall become the property
of Landlord upon the expiration or other sooner termination of this Lease except as otherwise
provided herein. If requested by Landlord when consenting to any Alteration requested by Tenan,
Tenant shall remove at Tenant’s cost upon expiration or termination of this Lease those Alterations
that would impose unreasonable adaptation costs as determined in the reasonable Judgment of the
Landlord, and shall repair any damage to the Property resulting from such removal. The Tenant
shall yield up the Premises in the condition the Premises were in on the Commencement Date,
reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire or other casualty excepted, taking by emineat domain
excepted, and any Alterations not required to be removed excepted. '

14. IGNAGE
Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall be permitted building standard signage on the
lobby directory and the entrance to the Premises. Such signage shall be first submitted to Landlord

and shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

(WeS5280 1) 14



15.  MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Section and Sections 17 and 18, Landlord shall
keep and maintain at its cost and expense (but as a component of Operating Expenses) in good
order and repair the structural portions of the Building, including but not limited to the roof,
exterior walls, floor slabs, columas, elevators, all security and HVAC Systems (to the extent
controlled by Landlord) and utility systems and equipment external to the Premises (specifically
excluding any such equipment exclusively serving the Premises or installed by or on behalf of
Tenant). Landlord shall also keep and maintain or cause to be maintained the Common Areas
(including any parking lots, exterior grounds and roadways on the Property) in good order and
repair, and shall keep any parking lots, sidewalks, walkways and the roadways on the Property
reasonably free of snow and ice during Tenant’s business hours (so long as such hours are provided
to Landlord in advance and in writing, otherwise Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to provide
services during Tenant’s business hours), substantially in accordance with the standards and
practices employed by other property owners of similar buildings in Portsmouth, New Hampshire.
Landlord’s obligations hereunder shall exclude reasonable wear and tear and uninsured damage
resulting from the negligence of Tenant or Tenant’s Agents. In addition, Tenant shall promptly
reimburse the Landlord, within ten (10) days of Landlord’s written demand, for all costs and
expenses to repair damage to all of the above caused by the negligence of or misuse by the Tenant
and/or Tenant's Agents, employecs, patients, customers or invitees. In no event shall the Landlord
be responsible for any indirect or consequential damage arising out of the Landlord’s failure to so
maintain and repair, including, without limitation, any damage due to the Tenant's inability to
remain open for business in the Premises.

(b) Except for repairs for which Landlord is responsible hereunder, Tenant shall maintain
the Premises in the condition the Premises were in on the Commencement Date, or, if Tenant
makes any Alterations in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Lease, then Tenant shall
maintain the Premises in the condition of the Premises were in on the Commencement Date, as
fmproved with said Alterations, as certified by Tenant’s architect, reasonable wear and tear, fire
or other casuaity and taking by eminent domain cxcepted. Tenant shall also be responsible for the
cost of any repairs to the Premises or to the Building, which repairs may be structural or non-
Structural in nature, necessitated as the result of Tenant’s neglect or fault or that of Tenant’s agents,
employees, or invitees.

(c) All repairs made by either Landlord or Tenant shall be done in a good and workmanlike
manner in accordance with all applicable laws and ordinances. Whenever in this Lease the costs
of repairs and maintenance are imposed on one of the parties, such costs shall first be paid from
available insurance proceeds.

(d) In the event that Tenant fails in its responsibility to provide maintenance and repairs as
set forth in this Section 135, Landlord, in addition to any other remedy set forth in this Lease, after
reasonable written notice of such failure, shall have the right to cure such failure on the account of
Tenant if the cure is not completed or commenced and diligently and continuously pursued to
completion by the other party within a reasonable time period.

{WEBRYIRY. 1 | l 5



16. INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

(a) Tenant shall hold Landlord and its Indemnified Parties harmless and indemnify them
from and against all injury, loss, cost (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses), claim,
cause of action, demands or judgments, or damage to any person or property arising out of the use
or occupancy of the Premises by Tenant or Tenant’s Agents (unless caused by the negligence or
willful misconduct of Landlord), and from and against all injury, loss, claim or damage to any
person or property anywhere on the Property occasioned by any act, neglect or default of Tenant
or of Tenant's Agents.

(b) The Tenant shall maintain with respect to the Premises commercial general liability
and property damage insurance including the broad form commercial general liability coverage in
amounts not less than $ umbrella policy, a $1,000,000.00 combined single limit
and an annual aggregate of at least $3,000,000.00. Such insurance shall include Landlord as an
additional named insured and Landlord’s Mortgagee as an additional named insured, as well as
The Kane Company and Kane Management Group, LLC, as managing agent, as an additional
named insured against injury to persons or damage to property as a result of Tenant’s use of the
Premises as herein provided, and shall contain a provision that the Landlord, although named as
an additional insured, shall nevertheless be entitled to recovery under said policy for any loss
occasioned to it, subject to Section 16(d) below.

Q) Tenant shall maintain, at its sole cost and expense, (A) fire and extended
coverage insurance for all of its contents, furniture, furnishings, equipment,
improvements, funds, personal property, floor coverings and fixtures located within
or about the Property, providing protection in an amount equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the insurable value of said items, (B) business interruption/rental
interruption insurance sufficient to cover twelve months of rents hereunder, (C)
workers’ compensation insurance which meets the requirements of New Hampshire
law.

(i) All of Tenant’s insurance shall be with companies qualified to do business
in the State of New Hampshire, shall be issued by insurance companies with a
general policy holder’s rating of not less than A-, Class VI as rated in the most
current A.M. Best report. Insurance may be maintained by Tenant under a blanket
policy or policies so-called, provided the coverage afforded Landlord will not be
reduced or diminished by reason of the use of such blanket insurance policy, and
provided further that the requirements set forth herein are otherwise satisfied.

(iit)  The Tenant shall deposit with Landlord certificates of insurance that it is
tequired to maintain under this Lease, at or prior to the Commencement Date, and
thereafter, within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of each such policy. Such
policies shall, to the extent obtainable, provide that the policies may not be changed
or canceled, without at least thirty (30) day’s prior written notice to Landlord.

(c) Landlord shall maintain fire and broad form extended coverage insurance on an “all
risk” basis, with replacement cost endorsement, on the Improvements equal to the replacement

1 WEHRIINY |} l6



cost thereof. Landlord or its agents shall not be liable for any loss or damage to persons or property
resulting from fire, explosion, falling plaster, steam, gas, electricity, water or rain which may leak
from any part of the Project or from the pipes, appliances or plumbing works therein or from the
roof, street or subsurface or from any other places resulting from dampness or any other cause
whatsoever, or from the act or negligence of any other tenant or any officer, agent, employee,
contractor or guest of any such tenant.

(d) Any insurance carried by either party with respect to the Property or property therein
or occurrences thereon shall include a clause or endorsement denying to the insurer rights of
subrogation against the other party. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this
Lease, neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be liable to the other or to any insurance company (by
way of subrogation or otherwise) insuring the other party for any loss or damage to any building,
structure or other tangible property, or any resulting loss of income, even though such loss or
damage might have been occasioned by the negligence of such party, its agents or employees if
any such loss or damage is covered by insurance benefiting the party suffering such loss or which
ts customarily covered by fire and extended coverage insurance in an amount equal to 100% of the
replacement value of the property so damaged.

17.  DAMAGE TO THE PREMISES

(a) Landlord shall have the right to terminate this Lease in connection with damage by fire
or other casualty to the 